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2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Revenue – rents receivable 14,226 13,607
(Loss)/proPt before tax (4,963) 8,700
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (4,240) 6,884
Net assets of theGroup 84,946 94,029
(Loss)/earnings per 25p ordinary share
Basic and diluted – continuing operations (23.1)p 39.9p
Dividend per ordinary share
(based on those proposed in relation to the Ynancial year) 12p 27p*
Net assets attributable to ordinary shareholders per 25p ordinary share 480p 532p
* 6p interimwas paid in 2018, 15p special was paid in January 2019, and 6pwas paid in January 2019.
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The Year in Brief



I am pleased to present our accounts for the year ended
31 December 2019 even though they show a loss of
£4,093,000after allowing for a tax credit of £870,000.This
loss is mainly due to a directors’ revaluation of our entire
portfolio amounting to an £8,832,000 decrease in value.
Our rental receivable during the year ended31December
2019 amounted to £14,226,000 compared to the
previous year of £13,607,000 despite having sold over
£40,000,000 of property during the previous year. The
income lost from these sold properties has more than
been replaced by purchases probably costing less than
half the capital received from the earlier sales.

Disposals
Victoria Street,Wolverhampton
This freehold corner site which had been cleared after
receiving planning permissions for two alternative
developments was sold for £710,000 against a previous
book value of £150,000.

Skinnergate, Darlington
A large, vacant freehold shop in Skinnergate, Darlington,
with abook valueof £400,000,was sold to the local council
for £355,000 after being vacated by Argos PLC following
their takeover and reorganisation by Sainsbury’s. This
property was on the point of being let to a well-known
multiplewhowithdrewa fewdaysbefore signing the lease.
This was due to House of Fraser and Marks & Spencer
both announcing they were closing their stores in the
town only the previous week. Large stores are, of course,
vital to towncentres as theydraw in shoppers thushelping
all town centre traders, large and small. I am not sure
central government even now understand this point.

High Street, Kings Lynn
Whilst not really a disposal, this single unit, let to a charity
shop, experienced a Yre that completely destroyed the
unit. We received insurance proceeds of which £145,000
hasbeen treatedasvalueover itsbookvalue, afterwehave
provided about a third of the receipts to cover demolition
and site clearance (and left a small amount within
Investment Properties to account for the land value).

Acquisitions
NewCentury and JacksonHouse, Gateshead
In July 2019 we completed on the freehold purchase of
New Century and Jackson House in Gateshead for
£4.65m. This is a large block containing a mix of retail,

o[ces and leisurewith a net internal area of 91,663 sq. ft.
located in the centre of Gateshead directly opposite the
metro station and approximately a mile from Newcastle
City Centre. The block is anchored by PureGymon a long
lease, with J D Wetherspoon, Argos and Peacocks being
some of the other well-known tenants. At the date of
acquisition, the block was producing an income of
£790,000 per annum showing a return of 17.0% prior to
costs. There are various assetmanagementopportunities
to improve the income by letting some vacant space.

DeClare Business Park, Pontygwindy Road, Caerphilly
On 4 September 2019 we completed the freehold
acquisition of De Clare Business Park, Caerphilly, South
Wales for £2.7m. This business park is made up of four
independentmoderno[cebuildingswiththemajorityof the
o[ces let tothegovernmentand localcouncil. In total there
is circa 48,241 sq. ft. of o[ce space with parking for 163
vehicles.Withacurrent rent rollof£376,000perannum,this
represents a return of 13.9% and adds non-retail
diversiYcation to our portfolio. There is some vacant space
available and we may be able to increase the rents,
enhancingthescheme’svalueunderourownmanagement.
During theacquisitionprocesswewereable toagreeterms
for a letting of one of the vacant suites at a higher rent per
square foot thanhadpreviously beenexpected.

Beales
In last year’s accounts I mentioned my private company
had, in October 2018, disposed of its interest in Beales’s
trading operations to its management who were able to
arrange additional Ynance from a private equity company
with extensive retail connections and experience.
I took this decision as I felt Beales had a much better
chance of survival as the management buyout was
supported by a fund with deeper pockets and wider retail
connections thanmyown. However, central government
actions, and inactions, and shrinking markets
overwhelmeddepartment storegroups’ ability toproduce
a proYt thus many CVAs, administrations and store
closures in the retail sector have been occurring.
Beales was placed in administration on 20 January 2020.
We received a number of questions from concerned
shareholders andstakeholders regarding theeXecton the
PantherGroup.On27January2020weannounced that in
a worst case scenario if trading ceased in all thirteen of
their storesownedby thePantherGroup there should not
be amaterial eXect on our current year’s revenue or long
term eXect on the freehold values of the properties
they occupied.
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Recently it was announced that practically all their stores
would close due to the severe deterioration in the trading
climate caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Panther Group owns Beales stores in Peterborough,
MansYeld, Great Yarmouth, two in Lowestoft, Skegness,
St Neots, Spalding, Wisbech, Beccles, Diss, Keighley,
Bishop Auckland and Perth. These properties are all
freehold in town centre positions, mostly large in size, in
diXerent degreesof primenessof position anddesirability.
The total gross Zoor area of these buildings is about
750,000 sq. ft. and the rental income lost from Beales’
tenancies was about £887,000 per annum. However, we
should receive directly in a full year, rents or proYts from
three car parks of circa £200,000 per annum plus the
ability to create three further small car parksmaybeworth
between £50-£60,000 per annum.
A number of the stores have exciting redevelopment
possibilities which we are currently exploring, i.e., see
photo of Bishop Auckland. Many are eminently splittable
to smaller units thus opening up the possibility of a much
wider range of users.
Many people would consider this a disaster and in many
respects it is. When a large enterprise that has been
trading for over 130 years fails, especially if within a town’s
central shopping area or heart, it has several implications.
It is bad for the town, upsetting for themulti-generational
families of customers, Ynancially disrupting anddispiriting
formany hundreds of long term, loyal and knowledgeable
employees and also seriously Ynancially inconveniences
thousandsof reliable suppliers andconcessionoccupiers.
I am very saddened by these circumstances, more so in
the knowledge that another of the most vital of the high
street’s failing retail groups could have been saved if
central government had been less rapacious in their
Ynancial demands and burdens on a struggling sector.
However, I see this group of properties coming back into
our fold as an opportunity for our team, using their
experienceandassetmanagement skills, to formulateand
promote new and more relevant uses for these
properties. We believe this will in due course produce a
much greater income and capital value for our Group.
I have mentioned at length the Beales situation as the
publicity is substantial but shareholders should be aware
it represents only about 6% of our income and less than
10%ofourGroup’s assets and I believehaveprospectsof
substantial appreciation when business activity recovers
from its present problems.

Because itwill involveconsiderableextraworkandattention
byour team this coming year, I have put their photos, roles
and length of service with us in the accounts so that
shareholders can see that ourGroup is a skilled team.

Developments
High Street, Broadstairs
Wehave commenced thedevelopment of aminimarket (a
pre-lethasbeenagreedtoanationalconvenienceoperator)
which will have twelve Zats on three Zoors above. We
anticipatewewill let the Zat units and retain the completed
development as an investment. This development is
expected tobecompleted towards theendof this year.
Newgate Street, Bishop Auckland
Planning permission has been obtained for partial
demolition and conversion of this former listed Beales
store as three ground Zoor commercial units with Zexible
A1/A3 use and either a 62 bedroom hotel or
27apartments above. It is currently beingmarketed to see
if there is possible interest from a hotel operator.
Barry Parade, London, SE22
This property has committeeapproval for redevelopment
as a 5,400 sq ft retail/commercial space which could
probably be pre-let before a development commences
and also thirteen residential apartments in theupper part,
four of theseunitsmust be aXordable. This approval is still
subject to agreeing the Section 106 requirements which
are quite extensive, expensive and still under negotiation.
This planning application is shown as being submitted in
July 2018. This is not quite the case. In December 2013
we asked our architects to discusswith planners whether
a redevelopment of this site would be favourably
considered. They were told the council would be pleased
to see this site redevelopedbecause itwas currently both
unattractive and inappropriate for the area.We asked our
architects to produce a brief outline of an attractive
scheme that would create best value for the site and
submit it for a pre-application response. It took Yve
months to receive the pre-application written response
after about a three month delay for the initial meeting
entirely caused by the council.
We eventually submitted our planning application at the
beginning of July 2015 after numerous reports and
changes required by the council, mainly reducing the
height and size of the schemealso reducing down to nine
large, luxury units, the limit before you had to provide
social housing on site.

Chairman’s Statement continued
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On29September2015 theplanners askedus towithdraw
our application as they disliked the large luxury Zats and
thereweremany objections to the potential tenant being
aCo-opminimarket.Weunderstood aWaitrose probably
would have had less objections!
The schemewas redrafted taking account ofmost of the
planners’ suggestions and also providing the additional
supporting reports required. The new application was
submitted in August 2016. The council then refused to
accept the application mentioning new requirements
coming into force in 2017.
A further pre appwasnecessary atwhichpoint the council
raised further revisions and requested additional plans,
reports and surveys. The new application was eventually
submitted in July 2018.
Committee approval was given subject to agreeing the
Section106paymentsetcatacommitteemeetingheldon
29 January 2020. It will take about 18months to two years
todevelop ready foroccupation.Wewill probably retain the
freeholdandthecommercialelementasan investmentand
sell the residential units on long leases when the
development is completed. The history of this property is
particularly interesting tomeasanoriginal investmentheld
sincemy father purchased the freehold for £7,000 in 1950
and I have been dealing with it since 1966, thus I felt it
warrants a supplementary ramblings to itself.

Financial Derivative
The liability on our interest rate swaps has risen slightly
due to the market’s perception of future interest rates
falling. However, on 1 December 2021 our interest
payable will, assuming our margin does not change on
renewal, reduce by about £625,000 per annum as one of
the older swaps ceases.

Finance
As at 31 December 2019, the Group were utilising
£60 million of our £74 million facility and also had a
£9,485,000 cash balance available.

Dividends
We have paid uninterrupted dividends for thirty seven
years through good times and occasional downturns and
I see no reason to change this policy. I amwell aware that
our shareholders appreciate the reliability of receiving

dividends.Thebackof theaccounts showsanabbreviated
scheduleof theGroup’s progress since its takeover bymy
group of investors in 1972.
TheDirectors are thus recommending a Ynal dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 of 6p per share. This
will be payable on 7 September 2020 to shareholders on
the register at the close of business on 7 August 2020
(ex-dividend on 6 August 2020).

Prospects
For once I Ynd this di[cult to predict for despite many
years of cautionary and proYtable investing, and minor
development of properties in our ownership we have
always been careful to manage our risk proYle. We are
currently in unknown territory due to a pandemic virus
attack aXecting the entire population and the economy.
The government are taking all steps that they feel
necessary to bring under control this major health and
economic hazard that could fatally aXect much of
our population.
These measures may create as little as three months’
disruption but maybe much more. The forced closure of
many businesses will cause hardship all the way down
the line.
The Chancellor has unveiled a huge assortment
of assistance to help the entire economy and
congratulations are in order for the speed with which
they have unveiled thesemeasures.
Of course, as usual, the property industry has been
completely overlooked whereas a vast number of other
businesses have a one year business rates holiday. Now
that it is illegal to trade frommanyof these premises they
haveno rental value andeven if possible to re-let, it needs
a long timescale andgenerous incentives todoso. Should
a qualifying business such as a retailer or leisure operator
exit the premises, then somehow the freehold owner
would then have to pay full rates with no income! Vacant
rateswere a ridiculous impositionevenbeforeCOVID-19
came along.
When a tenant, however successful, faces temporary
Ynancial problems, their Yrst port of call for help is their
landlord as usually they get a quick and helpful response
whilst governments take much longer to help and often
with small print in the Ynancial oXer that excludesmany.

Chairman’s Statement continued
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I am hoping and expecting that this pandemic will not
be quite as bad as some doom-mongers predict and
within 6 to 9 months we will be back to a normal free
enterprise system.
With this thought in place, whilst this situation may be
temporarily testing to our Group, we may recover
strongly once the health of our nation and our economy
is back to normal.
However, I can conYrm that we have enough Ynancial
resources, and with supportive lenders, do not see any
issue to prevent us surviving for more than double the
length of even the most pessimistic predictions. Further
as already announced we estimate that approximately
41% of our rental income comes from businesses that
have not been forced to close or been recommended to
close under government guidelines. The annual income
from thesebusinesses is approximately £5.6mandwould
beenough to cover our interest obligations toour lenders
of approximately £4.1m andmost of our overheads.
Finally, I would like to thank our small but dedicated team
of staX, growing teamof Ynancial advisers, legal advisers,
agents and accountants for all their hard work during the
past year, which has been extremely busy and promises
to be even more demanding for the current year than
usual. Special thanks andgoodwishes areextended toour
tenants and I hope they are able toovercome thepresent
troubled environment and make a full recovery when
business is back to normal.

AndrewS PerloO
Chairman
14May 2020

Chairman’s Statement continued
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Regular readers of my ramblings will be aware of the
special placeMargateholds inmyheart. It was there in the
50s that my parents had owned The White Hart, a
seafront pub/hotel which they also ran, helped by their
press ganged children. Indeed, in those halcyon summer
days of perpetual sunshine and no health and safety laws,
we were so small we had to stand on boxes to serve the
endless throng of thirsty customers.
It was unsurprising therefore that when I was Ynally old
enough to be allowed to takemy Yrst parent free holiday,
it was toMargate I headedwith two ofmy friends.
I was eighteen years old and had been working for less
than a year when we set oX for our 10-day summer
holiday. The excitement! The world was our oyster
(though not in the case of one friend who was strictly
kosher). Our destination was a large old double building
converted to a Kosher boarding house – one hundred
yards from the beach, close to the town centre and
Dreamlandamusementpark. Aperfect position for young
men ready to enjoy their Yrst taste of freedomaway from
loving but watchful parents. We had a wonderful time,
either on the beach or in local coXee bars depending on
the weather, with the local dance clubs luring us
townwards in the evening. We made friends with other
young men and women and alcohol which necessitated
one of our party (the strictly kosher one) being carried
back to the boarding house nearly every night byme.
It was a long time ago and although most events have
dimmed into a vague but happy blur of memories, one
incident stands out in sharp focus. It was yet another
beautiful, sunny day and we were in a nearby coXee bar,
whichwasoneofour favourite haunts in a grandbut faded
glory Victorian hotel facing the seafront. It was a very
popular meeting spot, probably the Starbucks of its day,
and we soon came to know its habitués. We became
friendlywith a groupof youngmenwho, althoughdressed
menacingly in black leather jackets, were really rather
friendly. They obviously liked to imagine they were the
Margate chapter of thenotoriousCalifornianHell’s Angels
and seemed immensely proudof their large andgleaming
motorbikes which were parked outside in a neat line.
The apparent leader of the pack was a self-styled Marlon
Brando and we soon became pals. He surprised me one
day when he oXered to take me for a spin on the back of
his bike. Excited and certainly unthinking, I immediately
agreed,mounted the bike (helmetless) and, with amighty
rumble, oXwewent.

He followed the road which ran alongside the seafront
through Cliftonville, past open spaces, down Northdown
Road intoMargate, round theclock tower, pastDreamland
and the train station all at a comfortable pace. We then
turnedback towardsour coXeebar. I heard ‘Marlon’ shout
“hold tight” and then his bike sped up from probably 20-
25mph toat least the speedof light ormaybe80-90mph.
I grasped tightly round his waist whilst Margate harbour,
thepier, seafront, and indeedmyshort life, all Zashedpast
me! I was petriYed and even more frightening was
cornering. The correct way, as any biker worth his salt, will
tell you is to lean into abend.Alarmed, I leant theopposite
way which apparently it was exactly not what to do.
Although the terror seemed never ending I doubt if we
travelled formore than twominutes at this speed.
Needless to say I havenever ridden, sat onor beenapillion
passenger on amotorbike since that date!
It was only after some years of mature reZection that
I realised I hadgiven ‘Marlon’ absolutecontrolofmysafety
and my life for the 10 minutes I was his pillion passenger.
My life, my future,my hitherto unbroken bones andmany
years’ yet to be written Chairman’s Ramblings were all in
his hands!
Alive andundamaged I returnedhomeshortly afterwards,
having had a wonderful holiday and was soon back to my
usual routine.
Another placewe regularly visited andwhichalso still holds
special memories was nearmy home in Sutton, BoxHill, a
National Trust beauty spot andatover 700 ft high is oneof
the largest hills in Surrey. At the base of the hill was a
historic and still old-fashionedhostelry. Thismayhavehad
a greater attraction than the natural, rustic beauty of the
place as for the small fee of 5/- per person allowed you
entrance to the hotel grounds where you could use their
open air pool and other facilities.
Onone lazy summer Sunday I drove therewithmy father.
While I swam, he sat poolside on a wooden bench
watching the activities.
As I swam I noticed with great interest a young and very
attractive girl emerge from the changing rooms. She
looked like a young Bridget Bardot and whilst I was
frantically thinkinghow toget to knowher, shewalkedpast
my father, put her towel onhis bench, sat downbesidehim
and shortly began talking to him. Opportunity should be
mymiddle name! I jumped – yes jumped – out of the pool
and joined them.

Chairman’s Ramblings
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Within a fewminutes I suggestedwe should go for a swim
andsheagreed. Risingelegantly fromthebench shedived
in and swam underwater the length of the pool with the
grace of Esther Williams. When she surfaced she waved
and shouted “Comeon in”. It was impossible to refuse the
call of this Lorelei of the Lido so I then instantly dived in,
thinking I looked like one of Esther’s Ylm partners, Johnny
Weissmuller of Tarzan fame, but I was probably more like
NormanWisdom in ‘Trouble in Store’!
We swam and chatted in the pool for quite a while and
conversation eventually turned to work. When she asked
what I did I told her I was an estate agent. ‘Then youmust
drive” she replied. “Do you have your own car?”. I told her
proudly that I was the owner of a pale blue mini FXV 512
which was in the car park. She toldme she was allowed to
drive her mother’s car, a Morris Minor, but coincidentally
her favourite car which she was desperate to buy was a
Mini as soon as she saved enough money. “Perhaps you
would let me drive your car a bit to practice in a Mini?”.
I instantly agreed.Hill starts and reversing around corners
were far frommymindbut the thoughtof being alonewith
her for half an hour in the car park or country lanes of
Surrey was extremely tempting. We hardly dried
ourselves, dressing over our still damp costumes.
We walked out to the large car park and I helped her into
the car. Before she turned the key to start the engine,
I held her hand on the gear stick and guided her through
the Yve forward gears and one reverse gear which was
di[cult to Ynd. I can still remember the electric shock of
excitement as I held her hand. She hitched her dress up,
straightened her back, grasped the steering wheel and
started the engine. She put it into Yrst gear and drove
round the car park slowly going through the lower gears.
She turned to me, smiled and sweetly said “I’ve got the
hangof it now.Can I drive for awhile on the roads? I’ll drive
very, very carefully?”. With those country lanes in mind I
readily agreed. She drove slowly up to the car park exit
then joined the road.
WHOOSH!!! theG force threwmeback in the seat andshe
rushed through Yrst, second and third gears in less than
10 seconds Zat! “Be careful of the gears” I shouted
pointlessly over the roar of the engine. She sat up
straighter, clasped thewheel tighter andwith a Yxed stare
proceeded to race as fast as the car would go. The main
roads luckily had little tra[c and she cornered a
roundabout or two on two wheels, leaning the right way
was the last thingonmymind.Myvariousentreatiesof “Be

careful…. slow down a little……..you will ruin my
engine…….we don’t want an accident…..it’s a small car” fell
on deaf ears. Finally I pleadedwemust return asmy father
would be waiting andmay worry.
She drove me round the outskirts of Epsom and Dorking
for over twenty minutes, her peaches and cream
complexion became Zushed red with excitement and
exhilaration. Mine was also Zushed but from fear!
However, we got back in one piece.
Upon our return we quickly dived back into the pool but
the camaraderie and ardour for each other had dimmed.
Although we exchanged phone numbers we never saw
each other again. I suspect she thought I was a wimp and
despite her obvious attractions, I had no wish to join this
nifty, nubile nymphetonher inevitable early journey to the
hereafter but I do hope she survived to live a full and long
life. Maybe someone of Lewis Hamilton’s ilk is her
grandson having inherited her superb racing genes!
When I recall this short butexcitingexperience I onceagain
realise, even if it were for only 20 minutes, I had yet again
given someoneelse full controlovermy safety and life.
Control is an interesting word, especially in business
situations.
Some years after these long forgotten events my
businesspartners and Iwerebecomingmoresuccessful in
the property business and I became increasingly
interested in corporate takeovers having completed my
contested takeover of Levers Optical Company Limited
in 1972. This company is, as of coursemany of you know,
now Panther Securities PLC.
This gave me a taste for corporate acquisitions and to
date I have initiated ten takeovers of listed companies, of
which two failed to achieve the control I desired although
were still proYtable ventures. I completed seven
successful private corporate acquisitions and was again
involved with three publicly listed companies where I held
30% of the equity and was appointed a board member
which gave me some inZuence in the control (that word
again) of the company.
My early ideas on corporate takeovers were based on the
belief that if youcould secure51%of the votingequity you
would be in control of the entire company. Of course,
then one automatically assumed you would have power
to appoint the Board of Directors but in practice this was
not always so.

Chairman’s Ramblings continued
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Every one of my corporate adventures could produce an
interesting, amusing and business related vignette all
coming back to that word ‘control’.
The optical company had people running their ownminor
internal department empires and each had separately
devised a beneYt system just for themselves.
A poorly performing investment trust in mid takeover
allowed the fund managers to shift the previously
unagreed cost of the takeover to a management fee
which they received and thus did not show up until
sometime later, thus proving the fund managers had
control of the cheque book!
After I had secured 51% of another poorly performing
investment trust with a top line board, the Chairman
instructed his brokers to sell the entire share portfolio
worth £1,000,000 even after he had been told in no
uncertain terms that thiswasprohibitedby takeover rules.
This sale went ahead anyway and after the takeover was
completed I was asked bymy advisers if I wanted tomake
a formal complaint. I declined as I had no wish to give the
former Chairman, a well-known and important inZuential
Ygure, a problem, but also the portfolio sale was what I
would have wanted to do – but would not break the rules.
Thus they carried out my desired wishes, probably in
anger. Thepoint being theChairmanhad controlby virtue
of his authority.
A single department store with an excess of assets and
ever reducingproYtability, where if wewere successful we
would have removed one overpaid Managing Director.
However, via old former owners’ trusts, he had control
and managed to obtain a white knight rival store group
takeover who, instantly upon the rival’s successful
announcementof its oXerbecomingwholly unconditional,
terminated the employment of many of the department
store’s management staX thus allowing the company to
be proYtable again. Surprise, surprise, the Managing
Director kept his highly paid job. Thus control with no
equity was with theManaging Director.
One small property company had a nice portfolio of
incomeproducingpropertiesmainly acquired for part cash
andpart shares andalsobuilding society loans– initially the
Managing Director had both board control and equity
controlbut the continuing acquisitions for equity reduced
his shareholdingwell belowcontrol level. Thiswas riskybut
much more so as the family team that ran the company
had salaries and expenses way, way in excess of the

company’s net income. They fell easily to a takeover and
the company had to be bailed out immediately to
complete its survival and revival. Again, it was control that
they lost.
I could give more mini stories on every one of our
corporate acquisitions but it all boils down to control. Not
just ownership but actual working control.
In the UK we have recently had one of the UK’s most
divisive elections which has pleasingly probably resolved
the Brexit conundrum. The Brexit question, in simplistic
terms, was about control of the UK either by a largely
unknown group of unelected bureaucrats which
supposedly represented the interests of aneverwidening
group of diverse countries, or UK elected MPs and a
successful Brexit via this election could bring back the
control of the UK to its own elected representatives. Of
course many of our elected representatives are usually
inexperienced and unsuitable for the jobs they take on –
but at least can be sacked or changed after 5 years or
sometimes sooner if they prove useless.
All UK general elections (as are all elections) are about
control, either by one faction or another, with each side
havingadiXerent viewpoint –buteachsidealwaysoXering
something that isn’t really theirs to give, invariably causing
problems if and whenever their promises are fully
implemented.
The public realised this last election was simply a matter
of control of our country and only one long established
party oXered them the potential answer. The public, in its
wisdom, created the landslide result.
Taxation is like hell. Hell being a construct promotedmany
years agoby religious longestablished institutions to keep
people in line whereas taxation forces people having to
pay a share of running the country under harsh threats of
punishment by thosewhomthe voters haveelected tobe
in controlof government but I am forever surprised by its
stupidity in enactment.
Recently I was informedbymyaccountant that oneofmy
more recent personal tax returns hadbeenquestionedas
it appeared Beales had paid me £1,200 as an annual
director’s salary. Theyhad indeed issuedmewith acheque
after standard tax deductions but I deliberately never
cashed it as I felt unable to take a salary froma continuing
lossmaking business.

Chairman’s Ramblings continued
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Despite the fact I did not receive anymoney, I was told as
Bealesmust haveput it through their books Imust pay tax
on this non income.Of course, the taxman never lost any
money as Beales did notmake proYts to pay Corporation
Tax. I had to pay the £300 extra tax which they billed me
for three further six-monthly tax periods in the
assumption I would continue to receive this income. I also
had to pay a £200 fee tomy accountant and, to rub salt in
the wound, tax of £40 on top i.e., for £900 that I never
received I had to pay £1,440!!!
Logic, common sense or fairness is rare as hen’s teeth in
tax o[ces.
Many of our shareholders will know that my mother, Fay,
died about three years ago. A signiYcant amount of
inheritance tax was eventually paid after about eighteen
months of dealing with her estate.
As Benjamin Franklin remarked, there are only two
certainties in life; one is death and the other is taxes. This
assumes that after death one does not have to bother
about tax.
Sometime last year I receivedageneric letter fromthe tax
o[ce addressed
“Dear Fay PerloXDeceased
Thank you for contacting us about your returns” ………
Asyoumightexpect, Iwasveryupset. Ifmymotherwithher
superpowerswasgoingtocontactanyonedownhere from
heaven above, she could have at least contactedmeYrst!
So I suppose it’s fair to Ynishon ‘if the taxo[ce is involved,
heaven help us’!

Supplementary Chairman’s Ramblings
Barry Parade (now a Group property) was a third rate
building containing twelve lock up shops situated in an
attractive corner position facing Peckham Rye Park. The
property at one time had a large Victorian era house with
a good sized corner garden and at a later date a parade of
eight small lock up shops built sometime in the early
1930’s. The property was an early victim of a German V1
rocket raid in 1944 when the big house was completely
destroyed and the lock up shops partially damaged. (This
part of London, originally a smart suburb of Georgian and
Victorian London with many large attractive houses, and
latermanyhugeestatesof terracedhousesbuilt to house
London’s growing population was by the 1950’s in a

severe decline as a residential area but still able to provide
good trade for themany local businesses).
I can remember visiting the site a number of timeswithmy
father and brother. The trip round South London was
exciting for a six year old child and I remember seeing
workmen repairing the war damaged shops. A few years
later my father arranged to have four lock up shops built
upon the site of thebig housedirectly facingPeckhamRye.
With hindsight I now know the buildings were built very
cheaply. Notwithstanding this the shops, which were
originally letatabout£150perannumeach,werealwaysfully
let andprovided auseful facility for the local community.
I started managing the property in about 1966 when the
area had become more run down but it always held
its income.
Just over twenty years ago the area began to change for
the better due to the boom in the residential housing
market thatwas rippling through London. The old houses
that had been cheaply converted to Zatlet houses were
being converted back to luxury houses and the Zats
upgraded so that just acceptable living units became very
desirable Zats convenient for Central London.
I thus startedconsidering thedevelopmentpotential. Due
to the property’s existing income the building, with Zats
above, at that time did not appear a particularly viable
development proposal. However, within a few years
continued escalating residential prices completely
changed the viability of any possible scheme.
It has now takenwell over seven years to reach this stage
for a possible redevelopment and itwould seem itwill take
at least nine years from start to Ynish of the scheme.
Perhaps as itwas the lastWorldWar that startedmy family
history of Barry Parade, with its partial destruction by a
waywardV1 rocket, it is a suitable timeline for comparison.
Germany invaded Poland on 1st September 1939 – then
France, Belgium, Holland and Russia. Germany’s
conquering progress was only put on the back foot when
America entered thewar after PearlHarbour inDecember
1941 and thus were eventually driven back into their own
territory and defeated inMay 1945, i.e., nearly six years of
huge turmoil, destruction throughout most of Europe
which involved a monumental amount of planning and
organisational ability Yrst by the Germans then by the
Allies for an eventual successful outcome.

Chairman’s Ramblings continued
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And yet in Southwark, on a small obviously poorly and
underdeveloped site we are unable to get permission to
redevelop, let alone actually build a shop and 13 Zats in
over seven years!
I suspect if one needed planning permission to build a
Wendy house in many boroughs it would be the original
applicant’s grandchildren, rather than the children who
might get the beneYt of playing in it!
Yours

AndrewS PerloO
Chairman
14May 2020

P.S. My Ramblings were prepared well before the Yrst
inklings of the COVID-19 pandemic started to cause
such disruption to our everyday lives and business
activity which I have commented on at length in my
Chairman’s Statement.
However, ……… It remindsme that in last year’s accounts I
had prepared and arranged for a cartoon to be inserted
headed ‘The Ten Plagues of the High Street’ (all
government created)with theUnitedKingdom looking like
a war graves cemetery withmany lines of gravestones all
either having shopgroup namesor left blank for unknown
traders or those yet to follow.
I could not imagine that the 10th biblical plague would
arrive. I am sure youwill be aware that this was called “The
Killingof theFirst Born”, i.e., theoldest,which is nearlywhat
is happening.
The government has pulled out all the stops and enlisted
the most knowledgeable medical advisors in an eXort to
control and eradicate this virus. We all should be, and
almost certainly are, supportive of their eXorts.

Chairman’s Ramblings continued



Key ratios andmeasures
2019**** 2018**** 2017 2016

Gross proPtmargin (gross proYt/turnover) 76% 71% 71% 77%
Gearing (debt*/(debt* + equity)) 41% 39% 45% 49%
Interest cover** 2.14 times 4.17 times 2.37 times 1.66 times
Finance cost rate (Ynance costs excluding
lease portion/average borrowings for the year) 7.1% 6.6% 6.4% 6.6%
Yield (rents investment properties/average
market value investment properties) 8.8% 7.7% 7.1% 7.7%
Net assets value per share 480p 532p 516p 407p
(Loss)/earnings per share – continuing (23.1)p 39.9p 120.2p (5.5)p
Dividend per share 12.0p 27.0p*** 22.0p*** 12.0p
Investment property acquisitions £8.1m £3.9m £8.9m £5.0m
Investment property disposal proceeds £1.1m £40.8m £2.2m £5.8m
* Debt in short and long term loans, excluding any liability on Ynancial derivatives
** ProYt before taxation excluding interest, less movement on investment properties and on Ynancial instruments and impairments, divided by

interest (excluding lease portion)
*** Includes 2018:15p (2017:10p) per share special dividend
**** IFRS 9 and 15 have only been reZected in 2018 and 2019 the prior year Ygure not restated. IFRS 16 has only been reZected in 2019 and the prior

year Ygure not restated.
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About theGroup
Panther Securities PLC (“the Company” or “the Group”)
is a property investment company quoted on the AIM
market (AIM). Prior to 31 December 2013 the Company
was fully listed and included in the FTSE Zedgling index. It
was Yrst fully listed as a public company in 1934. The
Group owns and manages over 850 individual property
units within over 120 separately designated buildings
over the mainland United Kingdom. The Group
specialises in property investing and managing of good
secondary retail, industrial units and o[ces, and also
owns andmanagesmany residential Zats in several town
centre locations.

Strategic objective
The primary objective of the Group is to maximise long-
term returns for our shareholders by stable growth in net
asset value and dividend per share, froma consistent and
sustainable rental income stream.

Progress indicators
Progresswill bemeasuredmainly throughYnancial results,
and the Board considers the business successful if it can
increase shareholder return and asset value in the long-
term, whilst keeping acceptable levels of risk by ensuring
gearing covenants are well maintained.

Group Strategic Report
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Business review
The Group’s underlying performance was strong in the
year ended 31 December 2019. The results are positive
once you remove the fair value write down on properties
and the fair value loss on the Ynancial derivatives is
stripped out. The Group showed higher rents, higher
operating proYts on a similar level of debt and strong cash
generation from operations. This can be seen in the
Consolidated statement of cash Zow when the majority
of the tax paid in the year, which mainly relates to large
disposals in the year ended31December 2018 is ignored.
This year’s Yguresprovide conYdence that theunderlying
business is performingwell and improvingwhencompared
to the prior year (stripping out disposals and other non-
cashmovements).
The Directors believe (under normal circumstances) that
we have made two decent long-term purchases in 2019
at high returns, in Caerphilly and Gateshead, which the
Group purchased using free funds left over from the
disposals in 2018. This has replaced a large proportion of
the income lost on the disposals in 2018.
The investment property values were written down by the
Directors following the in-house valuation. These
valuations incorporatedBrexituncertaintiesat theyearend
which impacted market values. These values also reZect
the risks associated with retailers as they try and adapt to
the fast changing consumer habits. However, the Group,
being a secondary retail property investor, has a lot of
neighbourhood parades. These tend to have a higher
proportion of businesses which are providing non-retail
oXerings even though they are shops. This includes things
such as service providers, restaurants or take away use, or
convenienceoXerings,whichhavebeen lesseXected than
pure retail, and in some instances even provide additional
opportunities i.e. beingable tooXer their takeawayservices
via Just Eat etc. Even our pure retail positions are mainly
largeblocks in thecentreof townsandwill nodoubtbeneYt
from longer term plans from the Government and local
councils looking into town centre regeneration schemes.
As such, if and when retail no longer works, we believe we
cancreate value fromthese siteswith planningpermission
to eventually give them other uses or purposes. In the
meantime, theycontinue in themostpart tobestrongcash
contributors providing high returns on initial investment.
The Group recognised a loss in value following the
Directors’ year end valuation, of £8.8m (compared to
a £6.4m million loss in 2018 also following a
Directors’ valuation).

Going forward
We stated in this section in our 2018 accounts that “…we
would be disappointed if we did not pick up a few good
investments in 2019, however these have to be carefully
selected as a lot of the risks perceived by the average
property investor are real.” This was achieved with the
purchases of Caerphilly and Gateshead, both with a good
spreadoftenantsandshowingtheusualhighreturnweseek.
Unfortunately, 2019 already seems like a lifetime ago.
Since then not only have Beales entered into
administration (in January 2020), we now have the
COVID-19 to contend with, which aXects a very large
majority of our tenants. Thankfully we still have a lot of
capacity in termsof fundsaswede-geared substantially in
2018 following the large disposals and also have the
beneYt of the non-reinvested cash funds. These facilities
and cash funds will help us weather the storm and we will
be in a much stronger position than most. This was
planned but also slightly fortuitous, as we were preparing
for Brexit uncertainties but it provides capacity Ynancially
towithstand this health andeconomic crisis. Taking these
two issues in turn:

• Beales administration
Even though it is sad to see thedemiseof another historic
business, and one we had a close association with, the
Ynancial reality is that the Directors believe the vast
majority of these propertieswill beworth a lotmore in the
medium to longer term without this tenant. The rents
were lowcompared to the space they let and the rentwas
not always paid. Relating to the year ended 31December
2019 the Group had circa £270,000 arrears unpaid
but fully provided against. Practically all the properties
have better alternative values and surprisingly all have
diXerent solutions.
Whether it is re-letting andcarvingup, utilising the valuable
car parks, full-scale redevelopments, or interest from
councils as they look to revitalise towncentres,wesee the
former Beales sites as key. This is because they usually
were very central and our view is that all former stores
have potential. Some of these opportunities will be
realised quicker than others but we can already see a
glimmerof a silver lining. It is just a shame that theCOVID-
19 has curtailed and/or slowed some of our discussions.
We are not concerned about these vacant properties in
the medium to longer term and see these as an
opportunity. We hope to report back on progress within
our interim accounts.

Group Strategic Report continued
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• COVID-19
This has been a much more challenging, wide spread and
fast changing situation than the business has ever faced
before. We believe for our size and within the property
sector,wehaveoneof themostdiverseandrobust income
streams. We have such an array of tenants, spread over
diXerentgeographic locations, in diXerent sectors, and lots
of sizes of traders, from sole traders to largemultinational
corporates. One of the key characteristics of the business
that we have developed overmany decades, in fact since it
recovered from the 1970s property crash, is ensuring a
strong diversiYed cash Zow and this is reZected in our
investment decisions, which often show high returns,
generated from a spread of tenants. However, with the
governmentputtingsocialdistancingmeasures inplaceand
requesting businesses to close, this leaves uswith very few
tenants remaining open for trading. We do have tenants
such as supermarkets, chemists, take-aways, Zat tenants,
conveniencestores andcertain industrial uses still open for
business who hopefully will pay their full rent.We have tried
toassesswhat thismeans in termsof rentalover thisperiod
but it is such a fast moving situation that even those you
would not expect to be aXected have been – however it
looks like asaminimumwewill haveour interest coveredby
income.We are takingmitigation actions, such as reducing
our outgoings and keeping good dialogue with our tenants
andensuring those that canpaydo.
The impact of COVID-19 is considered to be a non-
adjusting post balance sheet event and as such the
Statement of Financial Position, including property
valuations, has been prepared on the facts and
circumstances as at 31December 2019.
However, even though there are uncertainties going
forwardwhichmayaXectpropertyprices in theshort term,
we are protected by our portfolio’s diversity, experienced
management team,ability toadaptandbyhavingaccess to
funds. We have low gearing levels, supportive lenders and
cash reserves, which the Directors believe can keep us
going for over 21months evenwhen assuming lower than
expected levels of rents. We expect to receive as a
minimumcirca41%ofour rentswhichare frombusinesses
thatareeithernot required tocloseor recommendedtoby
the government. This amounts to around£5.6m.

Financing
The Group had previously entered into a £75 million club
loan facility (£60 million term and £15 million revolving),
whichwas renewedon19April 2016with a Yve-year term.

This is up for renewal inApril 2021–on31December2019
the maximum loan facility was £74m due to loan
repayment in the year.Wehavehad initial discussionswith
our lenders early in the year and theywere very positive in
terms of renewing on similar terms. The discussions are
currently onhold as theGroupand thebanksdealwith the
current crisis. However, our lenders’ relationship teams
are conYdent that when the COVID-19 crisis is over, we
can quickly get back on track, and in the worst case
scenario would look for a short termextension (to give us
more time for discussions and negotiations).
At theStatementof Financial Positiondate theGrouphad
£9.5m of cash funds, £14m available facility and a further
£10m included in our loan agreement but requiring credit
approval. InApril 2020cashwas further increased as anet
amount of £3m was drawn on the facilities as well as the
lenders agreeing to release£1.5mof the£2.3mwhichwas
restricted to property purchases (and included in the
£9.5m total).

Financial derivative
Wehave seena fair value loss (of a non-cashnature) in our
long term liability on derivative Ynancial instruments of
£0.997m (2018: £0.886m fair value gain). Following this
loss the total derivative Ynancial liability on our
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is £26.5m
(2018: £25.5m).
These Ynancial instruments (shown in note 29) are
interest rate swaps that were entered into to remove
the cash Zow risk of interest rates increasing by Yxing
our interest costs. We have seen that in uncertain
economic times there can be large swings in the
accounting valuations.
Small movements in the expectation of future interest
rates can have a signiYcant impact on their fair value; this
is partly due to their long dated nature. These contracts
were entered into in 2008 when long term interest rates
were signiYcantly higher. In ahypotheticalworld ifwecould
Yx our interest at current rates and term we would have
much lower interest costs. Of course we cannot undo
these contracts that were entered into historically,
without a signiYcant Ynancial cost, but for accounting
purposes these Ynancial instruments are compared to
currentmarket rates,with theadditional liability compared
to the market rates, as shown on our Statement of
Financial Position.
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In 2018 the Company entered into a new 10 year Yxed
interest rate swapagreement,with a£25,000,000nominal
valuewhichcommenceson1December2021.Theswap’s
interest rate is2.131%whichwill come intoexistencewhen
the Company’s current £25,000,000 swap with a rate of
4.63%ends, resulting inanannual savingofcirca£625,000.
By entering this transaction, the Company will have
certainty that its interest costs from December 2021 will
be signiYcantly lower compared to its current costs.

Financial RiskManagement
The Company and Group operations expose it to a
variety of financial risks, themain two being the effects of
changes in credit risk of tenants and interest rate
movement exposure on borrowings. The Company and
Group have in place a risk management programme
that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Company and Group by
monitoring and managing levels of debt finance and the
related finance costs. TheCompany andGroup also use
interest rate swaps to protect against adverse interest
rate movements with no hedge accounting applied.
Mark-to-market valuations on our financial instruments
have been erratic due to current low market interest
rates and due to their long term nature. These large
mark-to-market movements are shown within the
Income Statement.
However, the actual cash outlay eXect is nil when
considered alongside the term loan, as the instruments
have been used to Yx the risk of further cash outlays due
to interest rate rises or can be considered as amethod of
locking in returns (diXerence between rent yield and
interest paid at a Yxed rate).
Given the size of the Company and Group, the
Directors have not delegated the responsibility of
monitoring Ynancial risk management to a sub-
committee of the Board. The policies set by the Board of
Directors are implemented by the Company andGroup’s
Ynance department.

Credit risk
TheCompany andGrouphave implementedpolicies that
require appropriate credit checks on potential tenants
before lettings are agreed. In many cases a deposit is
requestedunless the tenant canprovidea strongpersonal
or other guarantee. The amount of exposure to any
individual counterparty is subject to a limit, which is
reassessed annually by the Board.

Exposure is reducedsigniYcantly due to theGrouphaving a
large spreadof tenantswhooperate in diXerent industries.

Price risk
The Company and Group are exposed to price risk due to
normal inZationary increases in the purchase price of the
goods and services it purchases in theUK. The exposure of
theCompanyandGroupto inZation is lowduetothe lowcost
base of the Group and natural hedge we have from owning
“real” assets. Price risk on income is protected by the rent
reviewclausescontainedwithinourtenancyagreementsand
oftensecuredbymediumor long-term leases.

Liquidity risk
The Company and Group actively manage liquidity
by maintaining a long-term Ynance facility, strong
relationships withmany banks and holding cash reserves.
This ensures that theCompanyandGrouphave su[cient
available funds for operations and planned expansion or
the ability to arrange such.

Interest rate risk
The Company and Group have both interest bearing
assets and interest bearing liabilities. Interest bearing
assets consist of cash balances which earn interest at
Yxed rate when placed on deposit. The Company and
Group have a policy of only borrowing debt to Ynance the
purchase of cash generating assets (or assets with the
potential to generate cash). The Directors revisit the
appropriateness of this policy annually.

Principal risks and uncertainties of theGroup
The successful management of risk is something the
Board takes very seriously as it is essential for theGroup to
achieve long-term growth in rental income, proYtability
and value. The Group invests in long term assets and
seeks a suitable balance between minimising or avoiding
risk and gaining from strategic opportunities.
The Group’s principal risks and uncertainties are all very
much connected as market strength will aXect property
values, as well as rental terms and the Group’s Ynance, or
term loan, whose security is derived primarily from the
property assets of the business. The Ynancial health of the
Group ischeckedagainstcovenants thatmeasurethevalue
of theproperty,asaproportionof the loan,aswell as income
tests. The two measures of the Group’s Ynances are to
check if the Group can support the interest costs (income
tests) and also the ability to repay (valuation covenants).

Group Strategic Report continued
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The Group has a successful strategy to deal with these
risks, primarily its long lasting businessmodel and strong
management. This meant the business had little or no
issues during the 2008 Ynancial crisis, which some
commentators saywas theworst Ynancial crisis since the
GreatDepressionof the 1930s.Wehope that the current
crisis will also show us in a good light due to the
preparations wemade in 2018.

Market risk
If we want to buy, sell or let properties there is a market
that governs the prices or rents achieved. A property
company can get caught out if it borrows too heavily on
property at the wrong time in the market, aXecting its
loan covenants. If loan covenants are broken, the
Company may have to sell properties at non-optimum
times (orworse)which could decrease shareholder value.
Property markets are very cyclical and we in eXect have
three strategies to deal with or mitigate the risk, but also
take advantage of this opportunity:
1) Strong, experiencedmanagementmeanswhen the

market is strong we look to dispose of assets and
when it is weak we try and source bargains i.e. an
emergent strategy also called an entrepreneurial
approach.

2) The Group has a diversiYed property portfolio and
maintains a spread of sectors over retail, industrial,
o[ce and residential. The other diversiYcation is
having a spread regionally, of the diXerent classes
of property over the UK. Often in a cycle not all
sectors or locations are aXected evenly, meaning
that one or more sectors could be performing
stronger, maybe even booming, whilst others are
struggling. The strong investment sectors provide
the Group with opportunities that can be used to
support slower sectors through sales or income.

3) We invest in good secondary property, which tends
to be lower value/cost, meaning we can be better
diversiYed than is possiblewith the equivalent funds
invested in prime property. There are not many
property companies of our size who have over 850
individual units and over 120 buildings/locations.
Secondary property also, very importantly, is much
higher yielding which generally means the
investment generates better interest cover and its
value is less sensitive to market changes in rent or
loss of tenants.

Property risk
As mentioned above we invest in most sectors in the
market to assistwith diversiYcation.Many commentators
consider the retail sector to be in period of severe Zux,
considerably aXected by changing consumer habits such
as internet shopping as well as a preference for
experiences over products. Of the Group’s investment
portfolio, retailmakes up the largest sector being circa 60
to 65% by income generation. However, the retail sector
is aXected to lesser degrees inwhatwewould describe as
neighbourhood parades, as opposed to traditional
shoppinghigh streets. The largepart of our retail portfolio
is in these neighbourhood parades, meaning we are less
aXectedby consumerhabits andevenbeneYt fromsome
of the changes. Neighbourhood parades provide more
leisure, services and convenience retail.
For example, we have undertaken a few lettings to local
or smaller store formats, tobig supermarket chains,which
would not have takenplacemany years ago. Blockpolicy is
another key mitigating force within our property risks.
Block policymeanswe tend tobuy ablock rather thanone
oX properties, giving us more scope to change or get
substantial planning if our type of asset is no longer
lettable. The obvious example is turning redundant
regional o[ces into residential. In addition, byhaving a row
of shops,we can increaseor reduce the sizeof retail units
tomeet the current requirements of retailers.
Finance risk
The Ynal principal risk, which ties together the other
principal risks and uncertainties, is that if there are severe
adversemarket or property risks then thesewill ultimately
aXect our Ynancing, making our lender either force the
Group to sell assets at non-optimal times, or take
possession of theGroup’s assets.We describe the above
factors in terms of management, business model and
diversiYcation tohelpmitigateagainstpropertyandmarket
risks which as a consequencemitigate our Ynance risk.
The main mitigating factor is to maintain conservative
levels of borrowing, or headroom to absorb downward
movements in either valuationor incomecover. Theother
key mitigating factor, is to maintain strong, honest and
open relationshipswithour lenders andgood relationships
with their key competitors. Thismeans that if issues arise,
there will be enough goodwill for the Group to stay in
control and for the issues to resolve themselves and
hopefully save the situation. As a Group we also hold
uncharged properties and cash resources, which can be
used to rectify any breaches of covenants.
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Other non-Pnancial risks
TheDirectors consider that the following are potentially material non-Ynancial risks:
Risk Impact Action taken tomitigate
Reputation Act honourably, invest well and be prudent.

Regulatory changes Seek high returns to cover additional costs.
LobbyGovernment–“Ramblings”.Useadviserswhennecessary.

People related issues Maintainmarket level remunerationpackages, Zexibleworking
and training. Strong succession planning and recruitment.
Suitable working environment.

Computer failure Loss of data, debtor history External IT consultants, backups, oXsite copies. Latest virus
and internet software.

Assetmanagement Draw on wealth of experience to ensure balance between
incomeproducinganddevelopmentopportunities.Continued
spread of tenancies and geographical location. Prepare
business for the economic cycles.
Where possible cover with insurance. Ensure you carry
enough reserves and resources to cover any incidents.

Subsequent to the year endanadditional risk relating toCOVID-19hasbeenadded.TheGroup’s strategy for dealingwith
this risk is set out on page 15.

Weather incidents, Yre,
terrorism, pandemics

Wrongassetmix, asset
illiquidity, hold cash

Transactional and holding costs
increase

Ability to raise capital/deal Zow
reduced

Acts of God
(e.g. COVID 19)

Loss of key employees/low
morale/ inadequate skills

Group Strategic Report continued

Section 172(1) statement
This is a reporting requirement and relates to companies
deYned as largeby theCompaniesAct 2006, this includes
public companies as otherwise the Group would not be
considered large.
Each individual Directormust act in theway he considers,
in good faith, would be the most likely to promote the
success of the company for beneYt of its members as a
whole, and in doing so the Directors have had regard to
the matters set out in section 172(1) (a) to (f) when
performing their duty under section 172.

Thematters set out are:
(a) the likely consequences of any decision in the

long term;
The longer term decisions are made at board level
ensuringawealthof experienceandabreadthof skills. The
value creation in the business is mainly generated by
buying the investments at the right time in the Ynancial
cycles, whilst reducing risk by choosing assets that have
alternative or back up values to the current use, as well as
initial values. It is also key that long term decisions are

made in respect of ensuring that property assets are
maintained, where economically viable. Other areas to
ensure decisions are in tunewith long termconsideration
are making sure the best possible Ynancing of the Group
to match the requirements of the long-term nature of
property ownership. The board andmanagement makes
long termdecisions suchas keepinga vigilant reviewof the
changingnatureof property usageand trieswerepossible
to diversify its incomestreams.Caerphilly andGateshead
purchases in 2019 are good examples of long term
decision making, i.e. choosing o[ces and a leisure led
retail scheme – as such giving some protection against
changing consumer habits inmore general retail arena.

(b) the interests of the company’s employees;
The companymakes investment in and the development
of talentof itsemployees, includingpaying forprofessional
development, providing inhouseupdatesandencouraging
knowledge sharing. The Group has a strong track record
of promoting fromwithin the business and after the 2019
year end two surveyors were promoted to Joint Head of
Property. TheGroupundertakes teambuildingactivities to
encourage cohesion andworking together.
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(c) the need to foster the company’s business
relationshipswithsuppliers, customersandothers;

Being in the secondary property industry the business is
used to dealingwithmany types of businesses as tenants
from largemulti-national businesses to small sole traders
– keeping good sound relationships with both is key. We
also use many small operators and suppliers and we
ensure prompt payment, paying within 30 days in
most instances toagain foster goodworking relations.We
set a purchase order system in 2018 and reYned it in
2019 to streamline and speed up payments supporting
small suppliers.

(d) the impact of the company’s operations on the
community and the environment;

The Group’s investments by its very nature often have a
signiYcant impact on local communities, providing
services and convenience businesses, or places for local
enterprise or employment.Owning a paradeof shops, we
can ensurewhere possible that these are viable locations
by encouraging a variety of oXerings. The Group
maintains and upkeeps its investment properties to a
viable level which beneYts the local communities they
provide accommodation for or seeks improvementswith
planning which can enhance local areas. The Group also
ensures it recycles much of its head o[ce paper and is
moving towards less paper communication; for instance
2019 was the Yrst year where invoices were emailed as
standard to our tenants and we also encourage the
receipt of electronic invoices.Wealso ensureweupgrade
our units to the required EPC levels which by its very
nature reduces the longer term environmental impact of
the use of these units.

(e) the desirability of the company maintaining a
reputation for high standardsofbusiness conduct;

The Group maintains an appropriate level of Corporate
Governance that is documented within its own section
within these Financial Statements. With a relatively small
management team it is easier to monitor and assess the
culture and encourage the appropriate standards. The
board strives to delegate and empower its management
teams to ensure the high standards are maintained at all
levels within the business.

(f) the need to act fairly as between members of the
company.

The Group has excellent communication with its
members, actively encouraging participation and
discussion at its AGMs and also circulating letters of our
announcements to ensure older members or those not
accessing theLSEYnancial news can keepup todatewith
relevant information.OurCEOandChairman is unpaid, his
beneYt or income fromthecompany is pro-rata the same
as all members includingminority shareholders.
The Group Strategic Report set out on the above pages,
also includes the Chairman’s Statement shown earlier in
these accounts and was approved and authorised for
issue by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

S. J. Peters
Company Secretary
Unicorn House
Station Close
Potters Bar
Hertfordshire EN6 1TL
14May 2020
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The Directors submit their report together with the
audited Ynancial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended 31December 2019.

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
TheDirectors are responsible for preparing the Strategic
Report, theDirectors’ Report and theYnancial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare Ynancial
statements for each Ynancial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the Group Ynancial
statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and the Company
Ynancial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP)
including FRS101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”.
Under company law the Directors must not approve the
Ynancial statements unless they are satisYed that they
give a true and fair view of the state of aXairs of the
Company andof theGroup andof the proYt or loss of the
Group for that period.
In preparing these Ynancial statements, theDirectors are
required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply

them consistently;
• make judgements andaccountingestimates that are

reasonable and prudent;
• state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the

European Union have been followed subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
Group Ynancial statements; and

• prepare the Ynancial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that theGroupwill continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are su[cient to showandexplain
theCompany’s transactions anddisclosewith reasonable
accuracyat any time theYnancial positionof theCompany
and enable them to ensure that the Ynancial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and theGroup andhence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and Ynancial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of Ynancial statements may diXer from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Going concern
TheGroup’s business activities, togetherwith the factors
likely to aXect its future development, performance and
position are set out in the Chairman’s Statement and
Group Strategic Report. The Ynancial position of the
Group, including keyYnancial ratios, is set out in theGroup
Strategic Report. In addition, the Directors’ Report
includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes
for managing its capital; the Group Strategic Report
includes details of its Ynancial risk management
objectives; and the notes to the accounts provide details
of its Ynancial instruments and hedging activities, and its
exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group is strongly capitalised, has high liquidity
together with a number of long term contracts with its
customers many of which are household names. The
Group has a diverse spread of tenants across most
industries and investment properties based in many
locations across the country.
The Group has a strong track record of obtaining long
term Ynance and expects this to continue as it has
supportive lenders. TheGroupalwaysmaintains excellent
relations with its lenders.
TheCOVID-19pandemic hasprovidedamuchharder set
of circumstances for all businesses. The Directors have
prepared a detailed Ynancial forecast assuming a
continued “lock down” scenario that demonstrates the
Group is a going concern even if the business eXects of
the lock down resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic
continues to December 2021 (further details with the
Strategic Report). This forecast takes account of a level
of minimal income from businesses and trades that
remain open (even in the lock down e.g. banks and
supermarkets). It also takes account of the Group’s
extensive cash reserves (and available facility – some
already drawn at the announcement date) and shows the
Group has enough Ynancial resources to survive to
beyond December 2021 – even with the current lock
down and its eXects continuing.

Directors’ Report
Company number: 00293147
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The Directors are aware that the Group’s loan is up for
renewal inApril 2021, however theDirectors are conYdent
that the Group has strong relationships with its lenders
and that even if the Group cannot renew for a full term it
should be able to get a short term renewal to tide it over.
TheGrouphas further protectionas the forecast doesnot
take account of any cost saving potential in 2020.
The Directors believe the Group is very well placed to
manage its business risks successfully and have a good
expectation that both the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue their operations for the
foreseeable future, even with the current COVID-19
situation. For these reasons they continue to adopt the
going concernbasis in preparing theYnancial statements.

Principal activities, review of business and
future developments
Theprincipal activity of theGroup consists of investment
and dealing in property and securities.
The review of activities during the year and future
developments is contained in the Chairman’s Statement
andGroup Strategic Report.

Company’s objectives and management of
capital
Ourprimary objective is tomaximise long-term return for
our shareholders by stable growth in net asset value and
dividend per share, from a consistent and sustainable
rental income stream.
The Company’s principal capital base includes share
capital and retained reserves, which is prudently invested
to achieve the above objective and is supplemented with
medium to long-term bank Ynance.

Results and dividends
The loss for the year after taxation, amounted to
£4,093,000 (2018: a proYt of £7,047,000).
The interim dividend of £1,061,000 (6.0p per share) on
ordinary shares was paid on 28 November 2019. The
Directors recommendaYnal dividendof £1,061,000 (6.0p
per share) payable on 7September 2020 to shareholders
on the register at the closeof business 7August 2020 (Ex
dividend on 6 August 2020). The total dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 being anticipated at 12p
per share.
There will be no option of a scrip dividend oXered for the
2019 Ynal dividend of 6.0p per share (to be paid in
September 2020). There was no scrip option for the
interim dividend in November 2019.

Directors and their benePcial interests in
shares of the Company
The Directors who served during the year and their
beneYcial interests in the Company’s issued share
capital were:

Ordinary shares
of £0.25 each
2019 2018

A. S. PerloX (Chairman) 4,244,360 4,244,360
B. R. Galan (Non-executive) 338,669 338,669
P. M. Kellner (Non-executive) 22,000 22,000
J. H. PerloX 107,500 107,500
S. J. Peters 187,929 187,929
A. S. PerloX and his family trusts have beneYcial interests
in shares owned by Portnard Limited, a Company under
their control, amounting to8,405,175 (2018–8,405,175).
There have been no changes in Directors’ shareholdings
since 31December 2019.
NobeneYcial interest is attached to any shares registered
in the names of Directors in the Company’s subsidiaries.
No right has been granted by the Company to subscribe
for shares in or debentures of the Company.

Directors’ Report continued
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Directors’ emoluments
Directors’ emoluments of £221,000 (2018 – £285,000) aremade up as follows:

Salary/ Taxable Pension Total Total
Fees Bonus BenePt Contribution 2019 2018

Director £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Executive
A. S. PerloX – – 6 – 6 3
J. H. PerloX 63 5 2 2 72 83
S. J. Peters 102 10 8 3 123 163
Non-executive
B. R. Galan 10 – – – 10 18
P. M. Kellner 10 – – – 10 18

185 15 16 5 221 285

Directors’ Report continued

Pension and other benePts
A. S. PerloX is the sole member and beneYciary of a non-
contributory Director’s pension scheme. The Group
ceased contributions in 1997 and accordingly made no
contributions to the pension fund in 2019 and does not
anticipatemaking further contributions.
S. J. Peters had pension contributions paid in the year by
theCompanyof £3,000 (2018–£21,000) intohis personal
stakeholders’ contribution pension scheme. S. J. Peters
and J.H. PerloX also received a contribution into a
stakeholder’s pension fund following auto-enrolment at
the statutory rate of a 2% contribution up to 31 March
2019 and 3% thereafter of their gross salary by the
Company. S. J. Peters did not contribute from April 2019
for the remainder of the year.
No other payments were paid in respect of any other
Director during the year (2018 – £nil).

Third party indemnity provision forDirectors
Qualifying third party indemnity provision for the beneYt
of Yve directors was in force during the Ynancial year and
as at the date this report was approved.

Capital structure
Details of the issued share capital of the Company are
shown in note24. TheCompanyhasoneclass of ordinary
shares which carries no right to Yxed income. Each share
carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the
Company. The details of the Group’s treasury policy are
shown in note 29.

Financial riskmanagement
Information regarding theuseof Ynancial instruments and
the approach to Ynancial risk management is detailed in
theGroup Strategic Report.

Donations
During the year the Group made a £nil political donation
(2018 – £nil). The Group makes donations to charities
through advertisements at charity events and in the
diaries of charities, the total of which in 2019 was £5,000
(2018 – £10,000). The Group is a Foundation Partner of
the preferred charity of the property industry, Land Aid,
donating £nil (2018 – £10,000).

Status
PantherSecuritiesP.L.C. is aCompanyquotedonAIMand
is incorporated in England andWales.

Events after the reporting date
Details of events after the report date are given
in the Chairman’s Statement and note 33 to the
consolidated accounts.
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Auditors
In the case of each personwhowas aDirector at the time
this report was approved:
– so far as that Director was aware there was no

relevant available information of which the
Company’s auditors were unaware; and

– that Director had taken all steps that the Director
ought to have taken as a Director to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that theCompany’s auditorswere awareof
that information.

This information is given and should be interpreted in
accordancewith theprovisionsof s418of theCompanies
Act 2006.
Following a tender process Crowe U.K. LLP will be
appointed at theAnnualGeneralMeeting andNexia Smith
&Williamson’s termof o[cewill end. A speciYc resolution
to appoint the new auditors, Crowe U.K. LLP, has been
proposed within the resolutions detailed at the back of
these Financial Reports.
This report was approved and authorised for issue by the
Board and signed on its behalf by:

S. J. Peters
Company Secretary
Unicorn House
Station Close
Potters Bar
Hertfordshire EN6 1TL
14May 2020
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The Board
The Board currently consists of Yve directors, of whom
two are non-executives. It meets regularly during each
year to review appropriate strategic, operational and
Ynancialmatters andotherwiseas required. In the year the
Board met three times with all members present. It
supervises the executivemanagement and a schedule of
items reserved for the full Board’s approval is in place.
Panther Securities P.L.C. has an ExecutiveChairmanwho
is also the Chief Executive.
The Board considers the two non-executive Directors to
be independent and to represent the interests of
shareholders. Both non-executive Directors are of the
highest calibre. Each is independently minded with a
breadth of successful business and relevant experience.
They are entitled to the same information as the
Executive Directors and are an integral part of the team,
making amost valuable contribution. Both non-executive
Directors have a su[cient level of expertise to challenge
and hold the executive Directors to account.
Each Boardmember has responsibility to ensure that the
Group’s strategies lead to increased shareholder value.

Biographical details of Executive Directors:-

Andrew PerloO (Chairman)
He has over 55 years’ experience in the property sector,
including over 45 years’ experience of being a director of
a Public Listed Company mainly as Panther’s Chairman.
He has signiYcant experience of corporate activity
including ten contested take-over bids and has also
served on the Board of Directors of six other public listed
companies. He is currently a non-executive director of
Airsprung Group PLC as well as Anglia Home Furnishings
Ltd and was previously a director of Beale Ltd.

Simon Peters (FinanceDirector)
He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Taxation, a
Fellow of the Chartered CertiYed Accountants and was
formerly with KPMG LLP and the Lombard Bank Finance
Department. He is currently a non-executive director of
Airsprung Group PLC as well as Anglia Home Furnishings
Ltd and was previously a director of Beale Ltd (including
when it was fully listed on the LSE). He joined Panther in
2004 andwas appointed FinanceDirector in 2005.

John PerloO (Executive)
Previouslywith a commercialWest End agent specialising
in retail acquisitions and disposals, he joined Panther in
1994. His areas of responsibility include property lettings
and acquisitions. He was appointed Executive Director
in 2005.

Biographical details of Non-executive Directors:-

BryanGalan (Non-executive)
Chairmanof theRemunerationCommittee.He is a Fellow
of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. He was
formerly joint Managing Director of Amalgamated
Investment andPropertyCo. Limited andwaspreviously a
Non-executive Director of Rugby Estates Investment
Trust Plc.

Peter Kellner (Non-executive)
Chairman of the Audit and Nomination Committees. He
is an Associate of the Chartered Institute of Bankers and
of the Institute of Taxation. Hewas formerly jointGeneral
Managerof theU.K. bankingoperationsofCredit Lyonnais
Bank Nederland NV.

QCACorporateGovernance Code
The Directors recognise the importance of good
corporate governance and have chosen to adopt and
apply the Quoted Companies Alliance’s 2018 Corporate
Governance Code (the ‘QCACode’). TheQCACodewas
developed by the Quoted Companies Alliance in
consultationwith anumberof signiYcant institutional small
company investors, as an alternative corporate
governance code applicable to AIM companies. The
underlying principle of theQCACode is that “the purpose
of good corporate governance is to ensure that the
company is managed in an e[cient, eXective and
entrepreneurialmanner for thebeneYt of all shareholders
over the longer term”. Details of how the Company
addresses the key governance principles deYned in the
QCACode can be found below.

1. Establish a strategy and business model which
promote long-term value for shareholders

Panther’s strategy and business model are set out in the
Group Strategic Report. The strategic objective section
of the Group Strategic Report states that the primary

CorporateGovernance
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objective of the Group is to maximise long-term returns
for our shareholders by stable growth in net asset value
anddividendper share, fromaconsistent and sustainable
rental incomestream.The key challenges to thebusiness
andhow thesearemitigatedare alsodetailed in theGroup
Strategic Report.

2. Seek to understand and meet shareholder needs
and expectations

The Board strongly encourages good communication
with investors. The Company sends out announcements
via post to shareholders who have requested this and all
shareholders can join our mailing list, even if they hold
shares in CREST.
The person at the Company with principal responsibility
for liaisingwith shareholders is: AndrewPerloX,Chairman.
Shareholders may also contact the Company in writing
via the following email address: info@pantherplc.com.
Inquiries that are received will be directed to the
Chairman if appropriate, who will consider a response.
The Company may exercise discretion as to which
shareholder questions shall be responded to, and the
information used to answer questionswill be information
that is freely available in the public domain. If deemed
necessary, the inquiries will be brought to the Board’s
attention. All shareholders are ordinarily invited to our
Annual GeneralMeeting. Boardmembers are available by
phone to discuss the company and there is also
shareholders access, before, during and after Annual
General Meetings for discussions, therefore providing
lots of opportunities for shareholders to understand and
address any issues.
The Board has historically approved a regular dividend for
many years, which has always been maintained or
increased. The Board aims to maintain a sustainable and
appropriate level of dividend cover. Where exceptional
years arise, the Board anticipates this will normally be
reZected with special dividends where practicable.
TheBoardbelieves theCompany’smodeof engagingwith
shareholders is adequate and eXective.

3. Take into account wider stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their implications for long-
term success

The Group is aware of its corporate social responsibilities
and recognises the importance of maintaining eXective
working relationshipsacrossa rangeofstakeholdergroups.

On the basis of the Directors’ knowledge and long
experience of the operation of the Group, the Board
recognises that the long-term success of the Group is
reliant upon the eXorts of the following key resources and
relationships: the Group’s employees, tenants, lenders,
regulatory authorities, local residents and the general
public aXected by our activities. The Company actively
seeksemployees’ feedbackon their employmentwith the
Company. The Company does this on an ongoing basis,
but also holds bi-weekly all party staX meetings where
employeesareable toprovide feedback.Theproperty and
Ynance departments frequently liaise with tenants, which
can include receiving tenant feedback. The Company’s
lendershave teamsofaccountand relationshipmanagers,
which theCompanycommunicateswithona regular basis
and provides regular management updates and is able to
receive any feedback from lenders. TheCompany is open
to feedback from local residents and the general public
thatmaybeaXectedbyour activities and, in particular, this
is often part of the planning process.
The Group understands the necessity of balancing the
needs of all our stakeholder groups while maintaining
focuson theBoard’s primary responsibility topromote the
success of the Group for the beneYt of its members
as a whole.
TheGroupensurescompliancewith regulatorybodiesand
legislation through various procedures and protocols and
receives feedbackonmatterssuchasplanningona regular
basis. The Group undertakes to resolve any feedback
received from stakeholders where appropriate and where
such amendments are consistent with the Group’s longer
term strategy. However, no material changes to the
Company’sworkingprocesseshavebeenrequiredover the
year to 31December 2019, ormore recently, as a result of
stakeholder feedback received by theCompany.

4. Embed eOective risk management, considering
both opportunities and threats, throughout the
organization

TheBoard’s discussionon riskmanagement as described
in the disclosure above in respect of Principle One and in
the Group Strategic Report, which detail risks to the
business and how these are mitigated. The Groups
internal controls are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risk and provide reasonable assurance against
fraud,material misstatement or loss.
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TheBoard seeks toensure that thecorrect andnecessary
level of insurance is in place to cover certain aspects of
risks including actions taken against theDirectors, as well
as all the propertiesweown. The insured values and types
of cover are carefully reviewed periodically and this is a
requirement of ourmain loan agreement.
A commentary on how the Company reviews its internal
controls canbe found in thedisclosure regardingPrinciple
Nine below.

5. Maintain theBoard as awell-functioning, balanced
team led by the Chair

The Board consist of three Executive Directors and two
Non-ExecutiveDirectors. Biographiesof thedirectors can
be found above, the Board considers its two non-
executive Directors (BryanGalan and Peter Kellner) to be
independent. Bryan Galan and Peter Kellner have been
directors of the Company since 1994. Despite the length
of service of the independent non-executive directors,
the rest of the Board consider them to continue to be
independent as they are su[ciently removed from the
day to day operations of the Company to retain a
critical and independent view. Further commentary in
respect of the Company’s Non-Executive Directors can
be found above.
As detailed above, the Board met three times with all
members present, theAudit Committeemet three times
with all members present and the Remuneration
Committee met three times with all members present.
Andrew PerloX, Simon Peters and John PerloX work full
time. Bryan Galan and Peter Kellner currently work on
average 6 days per year.
All Directors are kept apprisedof Ynancial andoperational
information in a timely fashion and in advance of any
meetings. The Executive Directors regularly attend
meetings to ensure decisions are made and inter-
departmental communication is strong and transparent.

6. Ensure that between them, thedirectors have the
necessary up-to-date experience, skills and
capabilities

TheCompany has an Executive Chairmanwho is also the
Chief Executive, being Andrew PerloX. The Company’s
Finance Director is Simon Peters. John PerloX is an
Executive Director. Bryan Galan and Peter Kellner are
Non-Executive Directors. Biographies of the directors
are above.

The Board has a wide and well-rounded level of expertise
and experience with a clear and proven track record.
Professionally qualiYedmembers of the Board keep up to
date with their Continuing Professional Development,
which ensures they are familiar with changes and current
developments in their Yelds and some members are on
other boards which helps them see best practise
elsewhere.TheBoardMembers takeparticular interests in
keeping appraised on key issues and developments
pertaining to theGroup.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the
Board nor any committee has sought external advice on
a signiYcantmatter and no external advisers to the Board
or any of its committees have been engaged.
Aside from the directors’ stated roles and the role of
SimonPeters asCompanySecretary, theBoardmembers
do have any particular internal advisory responsibilities.

7. Evaluate Board performance based on clear
and relevant objectives, seeking continuous
improvement

The individual Board members are appraised by the
Chairman and/or Non-Executives as appropriate on their
performance. This process is informal in nature and is
performed on an ongoing basis, rather than at pre-
determined annual junctures. The main criteria against
which individual director eXectiveness is considered are:
ensuring that the right actions in the business are being
takenandensuring that directors continue tobeeXective.
The Company’s director evaluation process has not
changedmaterially relative toprevious years, on thebasis
that the Board are of the view that the above processes
are appropriate for the Company’s requirements, given
the nature of the Company’s business and levels of
experienceon theBoard. Therewere nomaterial Yndings
from the Company’s Board appraisals over the year
ended 31 December 2019, which was the same in the
previous year.
All of the Directors are periodically subject to re-election
on a rotation basis at the Annual General Meeting.
TheCompanydoesnot currently haveaperiodic appraisal
process for the eXectiveness of the Board as awhole nor
for the eXectiveness of the committees (and this has not
changed over previous years).
The Board considers succession planning and the need
for further board or senior management appointments.

CorporateGovernance continued
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The Board believes that there is no need for changes to
the current board, management and committee
structures andmembership in order tomeet theneedsof
theCompany’s current andmedium-term requirements.
Regarding longer term succession planning, the Board
currently comprises agoodspreadof ageswhichprovides
a natural succession buXer.

8. Promote a corporate culture that is based on
ethical values and behaviours

The Board promotes a corporate culture of professional
behaviour, integrity, professional competence and due
care, objectivity and conYdentiality. These values are
promoted from the top down and embedded in our
working practices and company policies. As noted in the
disclosure above in respect of Principle Three, the
Company holds bi-weekly all party staX meetings where
employees are able provide feedback, which allows the
Board and management to have insights into the
Company’s culture.
When new employees join the Company, they are
provided a staX handbook and are required to become
familiarised with the Company’s working practices and
company policies. The Board and management are
prepared to take appropriate action against unethical
behaviour, violation of company policies ormisconduct.

9. Maintain governance structures and processes
that arePt forpurposeandsupportgooddecision-
making by the Board

The Board is satisYed with the Company’s corporate
governance, given the Company’s size and the nature of
its operations, and as such there are no speciYc plans for
any material changes to the Company’s corporate
governance arrangements in the shorter term.
Asnoted in thedisclosure above in respectofPrincipleSix,
Andrew PerloX is both Chairman and Chief Executive
O[cer of the Company. In his role as Chairman, Andrew
PerloXhasoverall responsibility for corporategovernance
matters in the Company, leadership of the board and
ensuring its eXectiveness on all aspects of its role. In his
role as Chief Executive O[cer Andrew PerloX leads the
Company’s staX and is responsible for implementing
those actions required to deliver on the agreed strategy.
Andrew PerloX and his family trusts are the beneYciaries
of themajority of theCompany’s ordinary shares. Andrew
PerloX is one of the original co-founders of the Panther
Securities property investment business and has been a

signiYcant driving force underlying the Group’s
development. On this basis, the Board considers that it
remains in the best interests of the Group to maintain
Andrew PerloX’s positions as both Chairman and Chief
ExecutiveO[cer (a position that hehasheld for a number
of years), notwithstanding that this is contrary to
recommended best practice in theQCACode. Feedback
received from shareholders has been positive on
this point.
The Executive Directors have a responsibility for the
operational management of the Group’s activities. The
Non-executive Directors provide independent and
objective insight and judgement to Board decisions. The
Boardhasoverall responsibility for promoting the success
of theGroup.
The Board has established an Audit Committee and a
Remuneration Committee comprised only of our Non-
Executive Directors to provide a level of independence
and objectivity.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists solely of the two non-
executive Directors and it is chaired by Peter Kellner. Its
terms of reference are that it meets at least twice a year
to review the Group’s accounting policies, Ynancial and
other reporting procedures, with the external auditors in
attendance when appropriate. Over the year to 31
December 2019 the committee met three times with all
members present. The internal controls are reviewed
annually ensuring their eXectiveness and any speciYc
issues are dealt with if and when they arise. When the
Board reviews internal controls they consider the
eXectiveness of controls, concentrating on all material
controls, including operational and compliance controls,
and riskmanagement systems.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists solely of the two
non-executive Directors, Bryan Galan (Chairman) and
Peter Kellner. Its termsof referenceare that it reviews the
terms and conditions of service of the Chairman and
Executive Directors, ensuring that salaries and beneYts
satisfy performance and other criteria. When setting
remuneration theCommittee consultswith theChairman
of the Board and no external third parties are consulted.
In the year to 31 December 2019 the Committee met
three times with all members present.

CorporateGovernance continued
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Remuneration policy
Companypolicy is to reward fairly theExecutiveDirectors
su[ciently to retain andmotivate these key individuals. In
determining remuneration, consideration is given to their
role, their performance, reward levels throughout the
organisation, as well as the external employmentmarket.
The Remuneration Committee considers that currently
the Executive Directors’ remuneration is below market
comparables, however somedirectors are incentivisedby
their personal holdings in theCompany. Theonly element
of remuneration that reZects speciYc performance is the
bonuses, however this is adjusted to reZect market
conditions and company results.
The Company does not have a Nomination Committee,
as the need for appointments and decisions regarding
appointments are considered by the Board as a whole.
The keymatters reserved for the Board are the following:
• Strategy
• Structure and capital
• Financial reporting and controls
• Internal controls
• SigniYcant investments
• Boardmembership and other appointments
• Delegation of authority
• Corporate governance
• Approval of company policies
• Other matters, such key adviser appointments and

insurance

10. Communicate how the Group is governed and is
performing by maintaining a dialogue with
shareholders and other relevant stakeholders

The Company provides extensive information about the
Group’s activities in the Annual Report and Financial
Statements and the Interim Report, copies of which are
sent to shareholders. Additional copies are available by
application.TheGroup isactive incommunicatingwithboth
its institutional and private shareholders and welcomes
queries on matters relating to shareholdings and the
business of the Group. All shareholders are ordinarily
encouraged to attend theAnnualGeneralMeeting (please
note the next AGM no shareholders will be invited due to
COVID-19 situation but will be encouraged to use their
Proxy forms), at which Directors and senior management
are introduced and are available for questions. The

Company provides a website with up to date information,
including announcements and company accounts.
The Board recognises the importance of communication
with the Group’s shareholders and various stakeholders.
The Group updates its website regularly with any
announcements and always welcomes shareholders’
queries which are welcomed by all members of the Board
whenever they arise.
The Annual General Meeting also provides an important
opportunity to meet shareholders. The Board has hot
drinks before andafter theAnnualGeneralMeetingwhere
dialogue is encouraged.
The detailed results of voting on all resolutions in future
general meetings will not be posted to the Group’s
website or announced, as the Board feels that these
results have in recent years been unambiguous and
generally unanimous.
Where a signiYcant proportion of votes (e.g. 20% of
independent votes) havebeencast against a resolution at
any general meeting, the Board will post this on the
Group’s website and will include, on a timely basis, an
explanation of what actions it intends to take to
understand the reasons behind that vote result, and,
where appropriate, any diXerent action it has taken, orwill
take, as a result of the vote.
The Group’s Ynancial reports for the last Yve years can
be found online: http://www.pantherplc.com/Ynancial/
reports-and-accounts/
Notices of Annual General Meetings of the Company for
the last Yve years are included at the end of each of the
annual report andYnancial statements.Within the last Yve
years, other than its Annual General Meetings, the
Company has not held and other General Meetings of
Shareholders.
Certain details regarding theCompany’sAuditCommittee
and Remuneration Committee and their work over the
year to 31December 2019 can be found in the disclosure
above in respect of Principle Nine. The Company’s Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee do not
produce public reports on their work over the year,
although theirwork and keyYndings are communicated to
the Board. Details of the Company’s remuneration policy
canbe found in thedisclosure above in respectofPrinciple
Nine and details of the Directors’ remuneration can be
found above in the Directors’ Report.

CorporateGovernance continued
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Opinion
We have audited the Group Ynancial statements of
Panther Securities PLC (‘the Group’) for the year ended
31 December 2019 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows and the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts,
including a summary of signiYcant accounting policies.
The Ynancial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union.
In our opinion, the Group Ynancial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s

aXairs as at 31December 2019 andof its loss for the
year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards onAuditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the Group Ynancial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Group Ynancial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard as applied to SME listed entities, and we
have fulYlled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordancewith these requirements.Webelieve that the
audit evidence we have obtained is su[cient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
• the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of

accounting in the preparation of the Group Ynancial
statements is not appropriate; or

• the Directors have not disclosed in the Group
Ynancial statements any identiYed material
uncertainties that may cast signiYcant doubt about
the Group’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the Group
Ynancial statements are authorised for issue.

Emphasis ofmatter – Impact of COVID-19
We draw attention to note 4 of the Ynancial statements,
which describes the impact of COVID-19 and the
reYnancing of debt facilities on the Group. Our opinion is
notmodiYed in respect of thismatter.

Key auditmatters
We identiYed the key audit matters described below as
those that were of most signiYcance in the audit of the
Ynancial statements of the current period. Key audit
matters include the most signiYcant assessed risks of
material misstatement, including those risks that had the
greatest eXectonouroverall audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit and the direction of the eXorts
of the audit team.
In addressing these matters, we have performed the
procedures below which were designed to address the
matters in the context of the Ynancial statements as a
whole and in forming our opinion thereon. Consequently,
we do not provide a separate opinion on these
individual matters.

Independent Auditors’ Report
To theMembers of Panther Securities PLC
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Independent Auditors’ Report continued

Key auditmatter Description of risk How thematter was addressed in the audit
Valuation of
investment
properties
(Group)

The valuation of the Group’s investment
property portfolio is inherently subjective due
to, amongother factors, the individual natureof
each property, its location and the expected
future rentals for that particular property.
Thevaluationswerecarriedoutby theDirectors
supported by Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors (‘RICS’) qualiYed employees
(“the Valuers”) in accordance with RICS
Professional Standards.
In determining a property’s valuation the
Valuers take into account property-speciYc
information such as the current tenancy
agreements and rental income. They apply
assumptions for yields and estimated market
rent, which are inZuenced by prevailing
market yields and comparable market
transactions, to arrive at the Ynal valuation. For
developments, the residual appraisalmethod is
used, by estimating the fair value of the
completed project using a capitalisation
method lessestimatedcosts tocompletionand
a risk premium.
The signiYcance of the estimates and
judgements involved, coupledwith the fact that
only a small percentage diXerence in individual
property valuations, when aggregated, could
result in a material misstatement, warrants
speciYc audit focus in this area.
The Group’s accounting policy for investment
properties is included within note 4. Details of
the Groups valuation methodology and
resulting valuation can be found in note 16.
As discussed in note 33 to the Ynancial
statements, the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the valuation of the Group’s
investment properties is considered a non-
adjusting subsequent event. There is therefore
uncertainty over the future impact on the
valuation of the group’s investment properties,
which at the date of this report has not been
quantiYed.

We conYrmed that the valuation approach was
suitable for use indetermining thecarrying value
for the purpose of the Ynancial statements.
We attended ameeting withmanagement, the
Valuers and the non-executive directors to
consider the draft valuation.
We assessed the Valuers’ qualiYcations and
expertise to determinewhether therewere any
matters that might have aXected their
objectivity or may have imposed scope
limitations upon their work.
We tested a sample of current rents receivable
per the valuation for consistency with the
Group’s tenant ledger. The tenant ledger
data was subject to separate sample testing
to ensure that the records within the system
are consistent with the underlying lease
documentation.
We compared sale prices to the previous
valuations tounderstandwhether the sale price
provides evidence of fair value or reZects
factors speciYc to the sale and not the
general market.
We analysed the individual property valuations
to understand signiYcant movements against
prior year and comparative market evidence.
Our work focused on the highest value
properties in the portfolio and those where the
assumptions used suggested a possible outlier
versusmarket data for the relevant sector.
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Independent Auditors’ Report continued

Key auditmatter Description of risk How thematter was addressed in the audit
Valuation of
derivative
Ynancial
instruments
(Group and
Company)

The Group has entered into three interest rate
swaps (‘swaps’) which are carried at fair value
through proYt and loss. Assessing the fair value
of the swaps is inherently subjective as the
Group uses its judgement to select suitable
valuation techniques and make assumptions
which are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the reporting date.
The Group benchmarks its valuations against
those provided by the counterparty bank and a
third party bank.
The Group’s accounting policy for derivative
Ynancial instruments is included within note 4.
Details of the Group’s derivative Ynancial
instruments can be found in note 29.

We gained an understanding of the Group’s
methodology in respect of determining the fair
value as at the Statement of Financial Position
date and assessed compliance with the
requirementsof relevant accounting standards.
We used external experts to compute an
independent estimate of fair value as at the
Statement of Financial Position date.
We considered the disclosures in the Ynancial
statements in respect of swaps outstanding as
at the reporting date.

Revenue
recognition
(Group)

Revenue for the Group consists primarily of
rental income.
Revenue growth is a key performance indicator
of theGroup. Revenue expectationsmay place
pressure on management to distort revenue
recognition. This may result in overstatement
or deferral of revenues to assist in meeting
current or future targets or expectations.
These include spreading of occupier incentives
and guaranteed rent increases as these
balances require adjustments made to rental
income to ensure revenue is recorded on a
straight-line basis over the course of a lease,
coupled with turnover and proYt rents which
require the use of estimates.
The Group’s accounting policy for revenue
recognition is included within note 4.

In testing revenue recognition we have:
• performeddetailed substantive testingof a

sample transactions, including agreement
to supporting documentation and
recalculation of income deferral; and

• agreed a sample of accrued income
balances, arising as a result of occupier
incentives, guaranteed rent increases or
proYt or turnover estimation to supporting
documentation and recalculated the
income accrual.
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Materiality
The materiality for the Group Ynancial statements as a
whole was set at £5,638,000. This has been determined
with reference to the benchmark of the Group’s total
assets, which we consider to be one of the principal
considerations for members of the Parent Company in
assessing the performance of the Group. Materiality
represents 3% of the total assets as presented on the
face of theConsolidated Statement of Financial Position.
The materiality for the Parent Company Ynancial
statements as a whole was set at £3,664,700. This has
beendeterminedwith reference to the benchmark of the
Parent Company’s total assets as the Parent Company
existsonly as aholdingcompany for theGroupandcarries
onno trade in its own right.Materiality represents 2.9%of
total assets as presented on the face of the Parent
Company’s Statement of Financial Position.
Anumber of key performance indicators of theGroup are
driven by Income Statement items and we therefore
applied a lower speciYcmateriality of £293,300, based on
2% of Group revenue. This lower speciYc materiality was
applied to the components of the Group and Parent
Company’s Income Statement, excluding investment
property valuationmovements and fair valuemovements
on derivative Ynancial instruments.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Of the Group’s 26 reporting components, we subjected
all to audits for Group reporting purposes.
The components within the scope of our work covered
100% of Group revenue, Group proYt before tax and
Group net assets. The Group audit team visited one
location in theUK covering the 26 components that were
subjected to audit.

Other information
Theother informationcomprises the information included
in theAnnual Report andFinancial Statements, other than
theGroup andParentCompany Ynancial statements and
our auditor’s reports thereon. The Directors are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
Group Ynancial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Group Ynancial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Group
Ynancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the Group
Ynancial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In ouropinion, basedon theworkundertaken in thecourse
of the audit:
• the information given in the Group Strategic Report

and the Directors’ Report for the Ynancial year for
which theGroupYnancial statements areprepared is
consistent with theGroup Ynancial statements; and

• theGroupStrategicReport and theDirectors’ Report
have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Mattersonwhichweare required to report by
exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the
Group and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit,wehavenot identiYedmaterialmisstatements in the
Group Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
• certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration

speciYed by law are notmade; or
• we have not received all the information and

explanations we require for our audit.

Independent Auditors’ Report continued
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Responsibilities of Directors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities
statement set out on page 20, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Group Ynancial
statements and for being satisYed that they give a true
and fair view, and for such internal control as thedirectors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
Group Ynancial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing theGroupYnancial statements, theDirectors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
Group Pnancial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Group Ynancial statements as a whole are
free frommaterialmisstatement,whether due to fraudor
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is ahigh level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to inZuence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of theseGroup Ynancial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the Group Ynancial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Othermatter
We have reported separately on the Parent Company’s
Ynancial statements of Panther Securities PLC for the
year ended 31December 2019.

Use of our report
This report ismade solely to theCompany’smembers, as
a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members thosemattersweare required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyoneother than theCompany
and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

JacquelineOakes
Senior Statutory Auditor,
for and on behalf of
Nexia Smith &Williamson
25Moorgate
London
EC2R 6AY
Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
14May 2020

Independent Auditors’ Report continued
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Consolidated IncomeStatement
For the year ended 31December 2019

31December 31December
2019 2018

Notes £’000 £’000
Revenue 5 14,226 13,607
Cost of sales 5 (3,429) (3,947)
Gross proPt 10,797 9,660
Other income 5 443 457
Administrative expenses (1,676) (1,819)
Bad debt expense 22 (524) (796)
Operating proPt 6 9,040 7,502
ProYt on disposal of investment properties 515 11,750
Movement in fair value of investment properties 16 (8,832) (6,396)

723 12,856
Finance costs – interest 10 (2,469) (2,526)
Finance costs – swap interest 10 (2,437) (2,533)
Investment income 9 112 24
Loss on disposal of Yxed assets – (41)
ProYt (realised) on the disposal of investments 105 34
Fair value (loss)/gain on derivative Ynancial liabilities 29 (997) 886
(Loss)/proPt before income tax (4,963) 8,700
Income tax income/(expense) 11 870 (1,653)
(Loss)/proPt for the year (4,093) 7,047
Continuing operations attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (4,093) 7,047
(Loss)/proPt for the year (4,093) 7,047
(Loss)/earnings per share
Basic and diluted – continuing operations 14 (23.1)p 39.9p
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31December 2019

31December 31December
2019 2018

Notes £’000 £’000
(Loss)/proPt for the year (4,093) 7,047
Items thatwill not be reclassi"ed subsequently to pro"t or loss
Movement in fair value of investments taken to equity 18 (225) (197)
Deferred tax relating tomovement in fair value of
investments taken to equity 27 38 34
Realised fair value on disposal of investments previously taken to equity 18 48 –
Realised deferred tax relating to disposal of investments
previously taken to equity 27 (8) –
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (147) (163)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (4,240) 6,884
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (4,240) 6,884

(4,240) 6,884
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Company number 00293147
As at 31December 2019

31December 31December
2019 2018

Notes £’000 £’000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment properties 16 169,340 170,236
Deferred tax asset 27 3,304 1,811
Right of use asset 373 –
Investments 18 927 1,850

173,944 173,897
Current assets
Stock properties 19 350 448
Investments 20 168 –
Current tax asset 601 –
Trade and other receivables 22 3,389 4,896
Cash and cash equivalents (restricted) 23 2,299 14,436
Cash and cash equivalents 23 7,186 5,614

13,993 25,394
Total assets 187,937 199,291
EQUITYANDLIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 24 4,437 4,437
Share premium account 25 5,491 5,491
Treasury shares 25 (213) (213)
Capital redemption reserve 25 604 604
Retained earnings 74,627 83,710
Total equity 84,946 94,029
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 26 58,955 58,864
Derivative Ynancial liability 29 26,511 25,514
Leases 31 7,912 7,510

93,378 91,888
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 8,541 10,192
Short-term borrowings 26 1,072 1,071
Current tax payable – 2,111

9,613 13,374
Total liabilities 102,991 105,262
Total equity and liabilities 187,937 199,291

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 14May 2020. They were signed on
its behalf by:

A.S. PerloO
Chairman
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31December 2019

Share Share Treasury Capital Retained Total
capital premium shares redemption earnings
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 January 2018 4,437 5,491 (213) 604 80,893 91,212
Total comprehensive income – – – – 6,884 6,884
Dividends – – – – (4,067) (4,067)
Balance at 1 January 2019 4,437 5,491 (213) 604 83,710 94,029
Total comprehensive loss – – – – (4,240) (4,240)
Othermovement (68) (68)
Dividends – – – – (4,775) (4,775)
Balance at 31December 2019 4,437 5,491 (213) 604 74,627 84,946
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31December 2019

31December 31December
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Cash Qows fromoperating activities
Operating proYt 9,040 7,502
Depreciation charges for the year – 13
Loss on current asset investments 15 –
Transfer stock to investment properties (141) –
Rent paid treated as interest (651) (571)
ProPt beforeworking capital change 8,263 6,944
Increase in stock investments (168) –
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 1,507 (1,219)
Decrease in payables (1,802) (319)
Cash generated fromoperations 7,800 5,406
Interest paid (4,091) (4,375)
Income tax paid (3,303) (2,743)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 406 (1,712)
Cash Qows from investing activities
Purchase of investment properties (8,138) (3,894)
Purchase of investments** – (2,271)
Purchase of current asset investments*** (3,996) –
Proceeds of current asset investments*** 3,981 –
Proceeds from sale of investment property 1,065 40,790
Proceeds from sale of investments** 851 275
Dividend income received 76 5
Interest income received 36 19
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (6,125) 34,924
Cash Qows fromPnancing activities
Repayments of loans (1,071) (15,161)
Loan arrangement fees and associated costs – (375)
Draw down of loan 1,000 500
Dividends paid (4,775) (4,067)
Net cash used in Pnancing activities (4,846) (19,103)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (10,566) 14,109
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year* 20,050 5,941
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year* 9,485 20,050
* Of this balance £2,299,000 (2018: £14,436,000) is restricted by theGroup’s lenders i.e. it can only be used for purchase of investment property.
** Shares in listed and/or unlisted companies.
*** Shares in listed and/or unlisted companies but held for trading purposes.
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1. General information
Panther Securities P.L.C. (the “Company”) is a Public Limited Company limited by shares and incorporated in England
andWales. The addressesof its RegisteredO[ceandprincipal placeof business are disclosed in the introduction to the
Annual Report and Financial Statements. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) are
described in the Director’s Report.

2. New and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
New and amended Standardswhich became eOective in the year
TheGroup has adopted the following new and amended standards:
• IFRS 16 “Leases” applies for the Yrst time this period. The impact of this standard is shown in Note 35.
In addition to the adoption of IFRS16, the following amendments have been issued and are eXective for the Yrst time
in this period. However there has been no material impact on these Ynancial statements as a result of the
changes introduced:
– IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over IncomeTax Treatments”
– Amendment to IFRS 9: “Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation”
– Amendment to IAS 28: “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”
– Amendment to IAS 19: “Employee BeneYts”
– Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23 in “Annual Improvements 2015-2017 cycle”

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet eOective
Amendments to IFRSwhichwill apply in future periods
Amendments have beenmade to IAS 1Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors in relation to the deYnition ofmaterial. The new deYnition will apply for the Yrst time in
the next Ynancial year. The amendments clarify the deYnition of what ismaterial to the Ynancial statements and how to
apply the deYnition.
The amendments will have an impact on the presentation and disclosure in the Ynancial statements. After applying the
new deYnition, the Ynancial statement may have less disclosures as it may be easier to justify that certain disclosures
are immaterial to users of Ynancial statements. Furthermore,moremeaningful disclosuresmay be presented in amore
prominentmanner due to the additional guidance on the eXects of obscuring information.
The Parent Company and subsidiaries have not adopted IFRS in their individual accounts.

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Sources of judgement and estimation uncertainty in respect of the valuation of derivative Ynancial instruments and
investment properties are noted in their accounting policies and respective notes.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31December 2019
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4. SigniPcant accounting policies
The consolidated Ynancial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards adopted for use in the European Union. The Ynancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, except for the revaluation of investment properties, derivative Ynancial instruments and investments which are
carried at fair value.
The preparation of the Ynancial statements requiresmanagement tomake estimates and assumptions that aXect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of
the Ynancial statements. If in the future such estimates and assumptions which are based on management’s best
judgement at the date of the Ynancial statements, deviate from the actual circumstances, the original estimates and
assumptions will be modiYed as appropriate in the year in which the circumstances change. The principal accounting
policies are set out below.
The Board have prepared a detailed Ynancial forecast that demonstrates the Group is a going concern even if the
commercial eXects of the lock down resulting from the COVID-19 continues to December 2021. This forecast takes
account of a level of minimal income from businesses and trades that currently are allowed to remain open even in the
lock down (e.g. banks, pharmacies and supermarkets). It also takes account of theGroup’s extensive cash reserves (and
available facility – note£4mextra hasbeendrawnat the announcementdate,with £1m loan repaymentmadeand£1.5m
released from the restricted funds) and shows the Group has enough free Ynancial resources to survive to beyond
December 2021. This forecast is a worst case scenario with the same level of restrictions the government is currently
requesting in place to December 2021. The forecast was very prudent and does not take account of any cost saving
potential in 2020 or the full level of income from businesses that our allowed to be open, which equate to circa 41% of
our rent receivable or £5.6m.
The Directors are aware that the Group’s loan is up for renewal in April 2021, however the Directors are conYdent that
theGrouphas strong relationshipswith its lenders and that even if theGroupcannot renew for a full term it should beable
toget a short term renewal to tide it over. TheGrouphas further protection as the forecast doesnot take accountof any
cost saving potential in 2020.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated Ynancial statements incorporate the Ynancial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the Ynancial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain beneYts from its activities.
All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchasemethod. The cost of the acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, consideration
payable including equity instruments issued by theGroup in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to thebusiness combination. The acquiree’s identiYable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities thatmeet
the conditions for recognition are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Investment properties
Investment properties, which are properties held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation, are revalued annually using
the fair valuemodel of accounting for investment property at the Statement of Financial Position date. When revaluing
properties judgements aremadebasedon thecovenant strengthof tenants, remainderof lease termof tenancy, location
and other developments which have taken place in the form of open market lettings, rent reviews, lease renewals and
planningconsents.Gainsor lossesarising fromchanges in the fair valueof investmentproperty are included in the Income
Statement in the period in which they arise.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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4. SigniPcant accounting policies continued
In accordancewith IFRS16 theGrouphas taken thepractical expedient tonot restate leasesentered intoprior to thedate
of transitionbeing1January2019.Nonew leaseshavebeenentered into since this date. Prior to1 January in accordance
with IAS17 (‘Leases’) and IAS40 (‘InvestmentProperty’), a property interest held under anoperating lease,whichmet the
deYnition of an investment property, was classiYed as an investment property. The property interest was initially
accounted for as if it were a Ynance lease, recognising as an asset and a liability the present value of theminimum lease
payments dueby theGroup to the freeholder. Subsequently, and as described above, the fair valuemodel of accounting
for investment property is applied to these interests. A corresponding interest charge is applied to the lease liabilities
based on the eXective interest rate. Fair value measurement of investment property is classiYed as Level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy. Using the fair valuemodel in IAS 40 is a recurringmeasurement.
Investment property disposals are recognised on the date that exchange of contracts becomeunconditional and there
is a reasonable expectation that completion will occur. At this point the investment property is derecognised and any
diXerence between consideration received and carrying value is recognised in the Income Statement.

Transfers between investment property and stock properties
Transfers from stock properties to investment property aremade at fair value; any diXerence between the fair value of
the property at the date of transfer and its carrying amount is recognised in the Income Statement. For a transfer from
investment property carried at fair value to inventories, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting in
accordance with IAS 2 (‘Inventories’) is its fair value at the date of change in use.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sumof the tax currently payable anddeferred tax. The tax currently payable is based
on taxable proYt or loss for the period. Taxable proYt or loss diXers from proYt or loss as reported in the Income
Statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. TheGroup’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date.
Deferred tax is recognised on diXerences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Ynancial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable proYt, and is accounted for using the
Statement of Financial Position liabilitymethod.Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
diXerences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable proYts will be available
against which deductible temporary diXerences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary diXerence arises fromgoodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that aXects neither the taxable proYt nor the accounting proYt.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary diXerences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
diXerence and it is probable that the temporary diXerence will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that su[cient taxable proYts will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that have been substantively enacted on or before the Statement
of Financial Position date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the IncomeStatement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt within equity.
Current tax assets and liabilities are oXset when there is a legally enforceable right to set oX current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current assets and liabilities on a net basis. Corporation tax for the period is charged at 19.00%
(2018 – 19.00%).
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4. SigniPcant accounting policies continued
Retirement benePt costs
TheCompanyoperates adeYnedcontributionpension schemeandanypensioncharge represents theamountspayable
by the Company to the fund in respect of the year.

Revenue recognition
IFRS 15Revenue fromContracts is applicable tomanagement fees and other incomebut excludes rent receivable. The
majority of theGroup’s income is fromtenant leases and is outside the scopeof the standard. TheYnancial impact of the
standard is considered immaterial and does notmaterially impact the Ynancial statements.
Revenue comprises:
• Rental income from tenancy occupied properties net of Value Added Tax where appropriate: The income is

recognised on an accruals basis.
• Saleof stockproperties: This is recognisedon thedate that exchangeof contractsbecomesunconditional, provided

that there is a reasonable expectation that completion will occur.
Other income comprises:
• Property management fees on service charge managed properties net of Value Added Tax where appropriate.

Income is recognised on an accruals basis when the performance obligations have beenmet.
• Surrender premiums received on the early termination of tenant leases. Income is recognised on the date of

surrender of the lease.
• Option premium and extension fees are recognised when the performance obligations are met and their signed

contracts.
• Dilapidation fees received but not expensed against repair costs. Income is recognised when the dilapidation fee

has been contractually agreed with the tenant.
• Insurance fees not utilised are recognised whenwe are sure they are not going to be utilised.
The fair value of consideration received or receivable on the above services is recognised when the above revenue can
be reliablymeasured. Revenue from services is recognised evenly over the period in which the services are provided.

Plant and equipment
Fixtures, Yttings andmotor vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write oX the cost of plant and equipment less their residual value,
over their expected useful lives. The rates used across theGroup are as follows;
Fixtures and equipment 10% – 33% Straight line
Motor vehicles 20% Straight line
Lease property Over the life of the lease
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the diXerence
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Income Statement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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4. SigniPcant accounting policies continued
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
At each Statement of Financial Position date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to determinewhether there is any indication that those assets have suXered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than the carrying
amountof the asset, it is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Income
Statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss up to value of
previous revaluation is treated as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount thatwould have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the Income Statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and Ynancial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s Statement of Financial Position when the Group
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at the transaction price in accordance with IFRS 15. IFRS 9 requires the Group
to make an assessment of Expected Credit Losses (‘ECLs’) on its debtors based on tenant payment history and the
Directors’ assessment of the future credit risk relating to its trade receivables at reporting dates.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities andequity instruments issuedby theGroupare classiYedaccording to the substanceof thecontractual
arrangements entered into and thedeYnitionsof a Ynancial liability and anequity instrument. Anequity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for speciYc Ynancial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Trade payables
Trade payables are initiallymeasured at fair value and are subsequentlymeasured at amortised cost, using the eXective
interest ratemethod.

Bank borrowings
Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially measured at fair value less any transaction fees such as loan
arrangement fees, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the eXective interest rate method. Any
diXerence between the proceeds and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of
the borrowings.
WherenewbankYnancing is obtainedonsubstantially diXerent terms to theexisting Ynancing theoriginal Ynancial liability
is derecognised and a new Ynancial liability recognised.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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4. SigniPcant accounting policies continued
Derivative "nancial instruments
Certain Ynancial instruments are entered into by the Directors on behalf of the Group to hedge against interest rate
Zuctuations. These include interest rate swaps, options, collar andcaps.Gains and losseson revaluationexclude interest
expense on derivatives. The Group does not hold or issue derivatives for trading purposes. Such derivative Ynancial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date at which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value at each reporting date.
TheDirectors estimate the fair value annually for theseYnancial instruments using the year end yield curve toextract the
markets estimate of future pricing for interest rates, this valuation is then considered alongside two valuations obtained
from diXerent banks (one being HSBC bank – the counterparty to these agreements) in deciding themost appropriate
value. This is an estimation and as such there is uncertainty to the fair value shown within the accounts. For derivatives
that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to the
Income Statement for the year. None of theGroup’s derivative Ynancial instruments qualify for hedge accounting.

Investments
Under IFRS 9, the Group has made an irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity
instruments thatwouldotherwisebemeasuredat fair value throughproYtor less topresent subsequentchanges through
other comprehensive income, and classiYed in the Statement of Financial Position as investments. Fair values of these
investments are based on quoted market prices where available. The fair value of the investments in unquoted equity
securities is consideredandwhere it cannotbemeasured reliably theyhave thereforebeenmeasuredat cost.Movements
in fair value are taken directly to equity. When these investments are considered impaired in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 9, the impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement. The investments represent
investments in listed and unquoted equity securities that oXer the Group the opportunity for return through dividend
incomeand fair valuegains. TheyhavenoYxedmaturityor coupon rate.Thoseshares that areexpected tobeheld for the
long term are shown as non-current assets and those that are held for short term are shown as current assets.
Current asset investments are held for short term trading and are carried at fair value with movements in fair value
recognised in the Income Statement.

Impairment of investments
At each Statement of Financial Position date a provision for impairment is established based on expected credit losses.
If the asset is judged to be impaired the loss is recognised in the Income Statement.

Provisions
Provisions are recognisedwhen theGroup has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Groupwill be required to settle thatobligation. Provisions aremeasuredat theDirectors’ best estimateof theexpenditure
required to settle the obligation at the Statement of Financial Position date, and are discounted to present value where
the eXect ismaterial.

Stock properties
Properties that are purchased for future sale are classiYed as stock properties. Stock properties are valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of the property and those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the stockproperties to their present condition.Net realisable value represents theestimated selling price less
all estimated costs to be incurred inmarketing, selling and distribution.

Share capital
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares issued by the Company.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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4. SigniPcant accounting policies continued
Share premium
Share premium represents amounts received in excess of nominal value on the issue of share capital.

Treasury shares
Treasury shares represents the cumulative amounts paid to re-purchase shares in the company.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve arises on the purchase of the Company’s own shares for cancellation.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the accumulated comprehensive income and losses of theGroup less dividends paid.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised based on the value per share declared. Where scrip dividends are issued, the value of such
shares,measuredas the amountof the cashdividendalternative, is credited to share capital and sharepremium.Thenet
movement in equity represents the cash paid on the dividend.

Leases
Accounting policy applicable before 1 January 2019
LeaseswereclassiYedasYnance leaseswhenever the termsof the lease transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases were classiYed as operating leases. As set out in the investment properties
accounting policy the Group accounted for operating leases in relation to investment property assets as if they were
Ynance leases.
Most leases are operating leases.

TheGroup as lessor
Rental income fromoperating leases is recognisedona straight line basis over the termof the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term. The sub-lease for the o[ce premises has not been recognised
on the grounds ofmateriality.

TheGroup as lessee
Rentals payable underoperating leases are charged to the IncomeStatementona straight linebasis over the termof the
relevant lease. BeneYts receivedor provided as an incentive toenter into anoperating lease are also spreadona straight
line basis over the lease term. The accounting policy for investment properties describes the Group’s treatment of
investment properties held under an operating lease.

Accounting policy applicable after 1 January 2019
IFRS 16 was adopted as of 1 January 2019 without restatement of comparative Ygures. See note 35 for details of the
transition.
A right of use asset and a lease liability has been recognised for all leases except leases of low value assets, which are
considered to be thosewith a fair value below£10,000, and thosewith a duration of 12months or less. The right-of-use
asset has beenmeasured at cost, which ismadeupof the initialmeasurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs
incurredby theGroup, an estimateof any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at theendof the lease, and any lease
paymentsmade in advance of the lease commencement date.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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4. SigniPcant accounting policies continued
The Group will depreciate the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. Where impairment indicators
exist, the right of use asset will be assessed for impairment.
The lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments due to the lessor over the lease term,
discountedusingthe interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readilyavailableor theGroup’s incrementalborrowing rate.
After initial measurement, any payments made will reduce the liability and the interest accrued will increase it. Any
reassessment or modiYcation will lead to a remeasurement of the liability. In such case, the corresponding adjustment
will be reZected in the right-of-use asset, or proYt and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero. On the
Statement of Financial Position, right-of-use assets have been capitalised and included as a separate item.

TheGroup as lessor
Rental income fromoperating leases is recognisedona straight line basis over the termof the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term. The sub-lease for the o[ce premises has not been recognised
on the grounds ofmateriality.

5. Revenue, cost of sales and other income
TheGroup’s only operating segment is investment and dealing in property and securities. All revenue, cost of sales and
proYt or loss before taxation is generated in the United Kingdom. TheGroup is not reliant on any key customers.

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Other income
Insurance proceeds not utilised 145 –
Contract extension fee (disposals) – 113
Service chargemanagement fees 101 99
Guarantee fee – 33
Dilapidations and other 197 212

443 457

6. Operating proPt
The operating proYt for the year is stated after charging:

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Depreciation of tangible Yxed assets – owned by theGroup – 13
Fees payable to theGroup’s auditor for the audit of both the parent
company and theGroup’s annual report and accounts 13 4
Fees paid to the Group’s auditor for other services:
The audit of the parent’s subsidiaries 103 87
Other services provided 6 13

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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7. StaO costs
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

StaX costs, including Directors’ remuneration, were as follows:
Wages and salaries 785 947
Social security costs 87 107
Pension contributions 12 33

884 1,087
The averagemonthly number of employees, including Directors, during the year was as follows:

2019 2018
Number Number

Directors 5 5
Other employees 19 16

24 21

8. Directors’ remuneration
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Emoluments for services as Directors 221 285

TherearenoDirectorswith retirementbeneYts accruingundermoneypurchasepension schemes in respectof qualifying
services. Please refer to the Directors’ Report for information on the highest paid Director and in respect of individual
Directors’ emoluments. Keymanagement are thosepersonshavingauthority and responsibility for planning, directingand
controlling the activities of theGroup. In theopinionof theBoard, theGroup’s keymanagement comprises theExecutive
andNon-Executive Directors of Panther Securities PLC. Information regarding their emoluments is set out above.
The following disclosures are in respect of employeebeneYts payable to theDirectors of Panther Securities PLCacross
theGroup and are thus stated in accordance with IFRS:

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Emoluments for services as directors 221 285
Employers’ NIC 23 36
Short term employee beneYts (salaries and beneYts) 244 321

9. Investment income
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Interest on bank deposits 36 19
Dividends from equity investments 76 5

112 24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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10. Finance costs
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Interest payable on bank overdrafts and loans 1,818 1,955
Interest payable on lease liabilities 651 571
Finance costs – interest 2,469 2,526
Finance costs – swap interest (on Ynancial derivatives) 2,437 2,533

4,906 5,059

11. Income tax charge
The charge for taxation comprises the following:

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Current year UK corporation tax 669 4,684
Prior year UK corporation tax (76) (71)

593 4,613
Current year deferred tax credit – note 27 (1,463) (2,960)
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year (870) 1,653

Domestic income tax is calculated at 19.00% (2018 – 19.00%) of the estimated assessable proYt or loss for the year.
The provision for deferred tax has been calculated on the basis of 17.0% (2018 – 17.0%).
The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting proYt or loss as follows;

2019 2019 2018 2018
£’000 % £’000 %

(Loss)/proYt before taxation (4,963) 8,700
(Loss)/proYt before taxmultiplied by the average
of the standard rate of UK corporation tax
of 19.00% (2018 – 19.00%) (943) 19.00 1,653 19.00
Tax eXect of expenses that are not deductible in
determining taxable proYt 53 (1.1) 15 0.2
Dividend income not taxable for tax purposes (14) 0.3 (1) –
Tax on chargeable gains diXerence to proYts (61) 1.2 2,010 23.0
Movement in deferred tax on revalued assets 353 (7.1) (1,601) (18.4)
DiXerence in current and deferred tax rates (181) 3.6 (352) (4.0)
Prior year corporation tax over provision (76) 1.6 (71) (0.8)
Tax (credit)/charge (870) 1,653

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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12. Loss or proPt attributable tomembers of the parent undertaking
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Dealt with in the accounts of:
– the parent undertaking (6,271) (5,283)
– subsidiary undertakings 2,178 12,330

(4,093) 7,047

Reconciliation of parent company proPt and loss
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

(Loss)/proYt of parent company before intercompany adjustments (8,120) 22,880
Bad debt provision – intercompany loan* 2,300 –
Intercompany dividends* (451) (28,163)
Loss attributable tomembers of the Parent undertaking (6,271) (5,283)
* removed on consolidation

13. Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Special dividend for the year ended 31December 2018
of 15p per share (2017:10p per share) 2,653 1,768
Final dividend for the year ended 31December 2018
of 6p per share (2017: 7p per share) 1,061 1,238
Interim dividend for the year ended 31December 2019
of 6p per share (2018: 6p per share) 1,061 1,061

4,775 4,067
The Directors recommend a payment of a Ynal dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of 6p per share (2018 –
6p), following the interim dividend paid on 28November 2019 of 6p per share (2018 – 6p). In 2018 a special dividendwas
also declared of 15p per share. The Ynal dividend of 6p per share will be payable on 7 September 2020 to shareholders
on the register at the close of business on 7 August 2020 (Ex dividend on 6 August 2020).
The full ordinary dividend for the year ended 31December 2019 is anticipated to be 12p per share, being the 6p interim
per share paid and the recommended Ynal dividend of 6p per share.

14. (Loss)/earnings per ordinary share (basic and diluted)
The calculation of (loss)/proYt per ordinary share is based on the (loss)/proYt, being a loss of £4,093,000 (2018 – proYt
of £7,047,000) andon17,683,469ordinary shares being theweighted averagenumberof ordinary shares in issueduring
theyear excluding treasury shares (2018–17,683,469). Therearenopotential ordinary shares inexistence.TheCompany
holds 63,460 (2018 – 63,460) ordinary shares in treasury.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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15. Plant and equipment
Fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total

£’000 £’000 £’000
Cost
At 1 January 2018 164 8 172
Disposals (75) – (75)
At 1 January 2019 89 8 97
Disposals – – –
At 31December 2019 89 8 97
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018 110 8 118
Depreciation charge for the year 13 – 13
Disposals (34) – (34)
At 1 January 2019 89 8 97
Disposals – – –
At 31December 2019 89 8 97
Carrying amount
At 31December 2019 and 2018 – – –
At 1 January 2018 54 – 54

16. Investment properties
Investment properties

£’000
Fair value
At 1 January 2018 201,825
Additions 3,894
Disposals (29,040)
Fair value adjustment on property held on operating leases (47)
Revaluation decrease (6,396)
At 1 January 2019 170,236
Additions 8,138
Transfer from stock properties 239
Disposals (550)
Fair value adjustment on investment properties held on leases 109
Revaluation decrease (8,832)
At 31December 2019 169,340
Carrying amount
At 31December 2019 169,340
At 31December 2018 170,236

At 31 December 2019, £130,366,000 (2018 – £129,739,000) and £38,974,000 (2018 – £40,497,000) included within
investment properties relates to freehold and leasehold properties respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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16. Investment properties continued
On the historical cost basis, investment properties would have been included as follows:

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Cost of investment properties 130,722 123,902
The Group has pledged £152,222,000 (ignoring lease obligations) of investment property (2018 – £154,743,000) as
security for the loan facilities granted to theGroup at the Statement of Financial Position date.
Costs relating to ongoing and potential developments are included in additions to investment properties and in the year
ended 31December 2019 amounted to £378,000 (2018 – £nil).
The property rental incomeearnedby theGroup from its investment property, all of which is leasedout under operating
leases, amounted to £14,189,000 (2018 – £13,518,000).
Property valuations are complex, require a degreeof judgement andarebasedondata someofwhich is publicly available
and some that is not. ConsistentwithEPRAguidance,wehaveclassiYed the valuationsof our property portfolio as level 3
as deYned by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. Level 3 means that the valuation model cannot rely on inputs that are
directly available fromanactivemarket; however there are related inputs fromauction results that canbeusedas abasis.
These inputs are analysed by segment in relation to the property portfolio. All other factors remaining constant, an
increase in rental income would increase valuation, whilst an increase in equivalent nominal yield would result in a fall in
value and vice versa.
In establishing fair value themost signiYcant unobservable input is considered to be the appropriate yield to apply to the
rental income. This is based on a number of factors including Ynancial covenant strength of the tenant, location,
marketability of the unit if it were to become vacant, quality of property and potential alternative uses.
Yields applied across themajority of theportfolio are in the rangeof 6.5%–13.0%with theaverage yield being circa8.8%.
Assuming all else stayed the same; a decrease of 1.0% in the average yield would result in an increase in fair value of
£20,672,000 (2018: £18,460,000). An increase of 1.0% in the average yield would result in a corresponding decrease in
fair value.
Theproperty valuationswere carriedout by thedirectors at 31December 2019 (alsoby thedirectors atDecember 2018
and GL Hearn in December 2017). The valuation methodology applied by the Directors and GL Hearn is in accordance
with The RICS Valuation Global Standards (eXective from July 2017), which is consistent with the required IFRS 13
methodology. IFRS 13 deYnes fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction betweenmarket participants at themeasurement date.
For some properties, valuation was based on an end development rather than investment income in order to achieve
highest and best use value. To get the valuation in this instance the end development is discounted by proYt for a
developer and cost to build to get to the base estimatedmarket value of investment.
The amount of unrealised gains or losses on investment properties is charged to the Income Statement as the
movement in fair value of investment properties, for 2019 this was a fair value loss of £8,832,000 (2018 – fair value loss
of £6,396,000). The amount of realised gains or losses is shown as the proYt on disposal of investment propertieswithin
the income statement, for 2019 there was a realised gain of £515,000 (2018 – £11,750,000).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued



52 Panther Securities P.L.C. Annual Report & Financial Statements 2019

17. Subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31December 2019 are as follows;

Proportion Proportion
Country of of ownership of voting
incorporation interest power held

Name of subsidiary and operation Activity % %
Panther Trading Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther (Dover) Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther Gateshead (VAT) Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther Shop Investments Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther Shop Investments (Midlands) Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther Investment Properties Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther (Bromley) Limited(*) Great Britain Property 100 100
Snowbest Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
SurreyMotors Limited Great Britain Non-trading 100 100
Westmead Building Company Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Multitrust Property Investments Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Etonbrook Properties PLC Great Britain Non-trading 100 100
Northstar Property Investment Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther (VAT) Properties Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Northstar Land Limited Great Britain Dormant 100 100
London Property Company PLC Great Britain Dormant 100 100
Eurocity Properties PLC Great Britain Property 100 100
Eurocity Properties (Central) Limited(**) Great Britain Property 100 100
CJV Properties Limited(**) Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther AL Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther AL (VAT) Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Melodybright Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
Panther Hinckley (VAT) Limited Great Britain Property 100 100
AbbeyMills Properties Limited(***) Great Britain Non-trading 100 100
Lord Street Properties (Southport) Limited Great Britain Property 99.99 99.99
* 100% subsidiary of SurreyMotors Limited
** 100% subsidiaries of Eurocity Properties PLC
*** Dissolved post year end

All companies have a 31December year end and have been included in the consolidated Ynancial statements.
The registered o[ce of all the above companies is Unicorn House, Station Close, Potters Bar, Herts, EN6 1TL.
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18. Investments
Non-current

assets
£’000

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018 17
Additions 2,271
Movement in fair value taken to equity (197)
Disposals (241)
At 1 January 2019 1,850
Movement in fair value taken to equity (225)
Movement in fair value taken to equity realised on disposal 48
Disposals (746)
At 31December 2019 927

Comprising at 31December 2019:
At cost 17
At valuation/net realisable value 910

Carrying amount
At 31December 2019 927
At 31December 2018 1,850

The investments represent investments in listed andunquotedequity securities that oXer theGroup theopportunity for
return through dividend income and fair value gains. They have no Yxed maturity or coupon rate. The fair values of the
listed securities are based on quotedmarket prices. The securities carried at fair value are classiYed as Level 1 in the fair
value hierarchy speciYed in IFRS 13. The fair value of investments in unquoted equity securities, which are not publically
traded, cannot be reliablymeasuredandhave thereforebeenshownat cost. The valuationof the investments is sensitive
to stock exchange conditions.

Price risk
For the year ended31December2019 if the average sharepriceof theportfoliowas10% lower, then the loss recognised
inOtherComprehensive Incomewould havebeen£91,000 lower (2018: £183,000 lower). Correspondinggainswould be
seen for a 10%uplift.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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19. Stock properties
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Stock properties 350 448
The cost of stock properties recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to £98,000 (2018 – £nil).
Impairments of £nil have been recognised against stock properties (2018 – £nil).
Themarket value of stock properties is £600,000 (2018 – £1,190,000).
£600,000 (2018: £1,090,000) of stock properties atmarket value have been provided as security for the bank loan from
HSBC and Santander referred to in note 26.
Themarket value shown as at 31December 2019was undertaken by theDirectors (31December 2018was also valued
by the Directors). The stock properties are held at the lower of cost and market value and as such any uplift is not
recognised in the Ynancial statements.

20. Investments (current assets)
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Listed or quoted investments 168 –
These are investments that are held for short term trading and not for long term investment.

21. Capital commitments
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but has not been
provided for in the accounts 1,812 100
This relates to an ongoing development started in 2019 for a large retail unit and Zats above it with £0.3m of the above
being settled by the time of announcement.

22. Trade and other receivables
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Trade receivables 3,683 4,795
Bad debt provision (1,392) (1,659)

2,291 3,136
Other receivables – 76
Prepayments 299 1,210
Accrued income 799 474

3,389 4,896

TheDirectors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value. Net trade
receivables are Ynancial assets. The total of Ynancial assets included within the Ynancial statements at amortised cost
is £12,575,000 (2018 – £23,736,000) (which relates to £3,090,000 (2018 – £3,686,000) included in the above (less
prepayments) and theGroup’s cash or cash equivalents).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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22. Trade and other receivables continued
Debts are speciYcally provided for on anexpectedcredit lossmodel. Thebaddebt provision includes allmaterial doubtful
debts that the directors are aware of. Other receivables and accrued income are shown net of provisions.
Movement in allowance for doubtful debts on trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents:

Trade Accrued Other Cash and cash Total bad debt
receivables income receivables equivalents provisions

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Balance at 1 January 2018 1,569 571 250 48 2,438
Amount written oX as uncollectable (707) – – – (707)
Charge/(credit) to income statement 797 – – (1) 796
Balance at 1 January 2019 1,659 571 250 47 2,527
Amounts written oX as uncollectable (804) (571) (239) – (1,614)
Charge/(credit) to income statement 537 – (11) (2) 524
Balances at 31December 2019 1,392 – – 45 1,437
The cash and cash equivalents balances provided against related to balances on account with Kaupthing Singer and
Friedlander before they went into administration. The Group at the Statement of Financial Position date had received
86.5p in the pound from an original balance of £332,000.

23. Other Pnancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits. The carrying amount of
these assets approximates their fair value.

Credit risk
TheGroup’s Ynancial assets are cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.
The credit risk on liquid funds is mitigated by the use of bank counterparties with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. KaupthingSinger andFriedlanderwent into administration and all of its balances are
providedagainst (seenote22). Further informationon theGroup’s credit risk is detailedwithin theGroupStrategicReport.

24. Share capital
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
17,746,929 (2018 – 17,746,929) ordinary shares of £0.25 each 4,437 4,437
TheCompany has one class of ordinary shares which carry no Yxed right to income.
During2019noordinary shareswere issued in theperiod (2018–noordinary shareswere issued). 63,460 (2018–63,460)
ordinary shares are held in treasury.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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25. Capital reserves
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Share premium account
At 31December 5,491 5,491
Treasury shares
At 31December (213) (213)
Capital redemption reserve
At 31December 604 604

26. Bank loans
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Bank loans due within one year 1,072 1,071
(within current liabilities)
Bank loans due withinmore than one year 58,955 58,864
(within non-current liabilities)
Total bank loans 60,027 59,935

2019 2019 2019 2018
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Analysis of debtmaturity Interest* Capital Total Total
Trade and other payables** – 5,172 5,172 6,749
Bank loans repayable
On demand or within one year 1,561 1,072 2,633 2,764
In the second year 520 59,072 59,592 2,735
In the third year to the �fth year 1 42 43 60,185

2,082 60,186 62,268 72,433
* based on the year end 3month LIBOR Zoating rate – 0.68%, and bank rate of 0.10%.
** Trade creditors, other creditors and accruals

On 19April 2016 theGroup renewed its £75,000,000 loan facility by entering into a new 5 year term loanwith HSBC and
Santander. TheGrouphas theoption todrawdownanadditional £10,000,000under the sameagreement subject to the
banks’ credit approval process. TheGroup has commenced talks with its lenders to renew the facilities on similar terms
and hopes to have this in place by 31 December 2020. The initial conversations have been very positive and the Board
believes there should be no issues with theGroup’s loan renewal.
A Shawbrook bank loan of £186,000 at the year end is repayable over its life to September 2022.
Bank loans are secured by Yxed and Zoating charges over the assets of theGroup.
The estimate of interest payable is based on current interest rates and as such, is subject to change.
TheDirectors estimate the fair valueof theGroup’s borrowings, by discounting their future cashZowsat themarket rate
(in relation to the prevailing market rate for a debt instrument with similar terms). The fair value of bank loans is not
considered to bematerially diXerent to the book value. Bank loans are Ynancial liabilities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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27. Deferred taxation
The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group, and the movements thereon,
during the current and prior reporting periods.

Total
£’000

Liability at 1 January 2018 (1,183)
Debit to equity for the year 34
Credit to Income Statement for the year 2,960
Asset at 1 January 2019 1,811
Debit to equity for the year 30
Credit to Income Statement for the year 1,463
Asset at 31December 2019 3,304

Deferred taxation arises in relation to:
Deferred tax

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment properties (1,533) (2,840)
Deferred tax assets:
Tax allowances in excess of book value 266 281
Fair value of investments 64 34
Derivative Ynancial liability 4,507 4,336
Net deferred tax asset 3,304 1,811

As at 31December 2019 the substantively enacted ratewas 17% (2018: 17%) and this has beenused for the deferred tax
calculation. Themost recent budget approved an increase back to 19%but thiswas substantively enacted inMarch 2020.

28. Trade and other payables
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Trade creditors 2,863 5,126
Social security and other taxes 132 462
Other creditors 1,225 1,138
Leases (see note 31) 651 571
Accruals 1,084 485
Deferred income 2,586 2,410

8,541 10,192
Trade creditors and accruals comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases.
TheDirectors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates their fair value.
All trade and other payables are due within one year. Trade creditors and accruals are Ynancial liabilities.
Liabilities included within the Ynancial statements at amortised cost total £73,894,000 (2018 – £75,227,000) (includes
payables above and the long term and short term borrowings, excluding deferred income plus lease liabilities).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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29. Derivative Pnancial instruments
Themain risks arising from theGroup’s Ynancial instruments are those related to interest ratemovements.Whilst there
areno formal procedures formanagingexposure to interest rate Zuctuations, theBoard continually reviews the situation
and makes decisions accordingly. Hence, the Company will, as far as possible, enter into Yxed interest rate swap
arrangements. Thepurposeof such transactions is tomanage the interest rate risks arising fromtheGroup’s operations
and its sources of Ynance.
Bank loans 2019 2018
Interest is charged as to: £’000 Rate £’000 Rate
Fixed/Hedged
HSBCBank plc* 35,000 7.01% 35,000 7.01%
HSBCBank plc** 25,000 6.58% 25,000 6.58%
Unamortised loan arrangement fees (159) (322)
Floating element
HSBC Bank plc – –
Shawbrook Bank Ltd 186 257

60,027 59,935

Bank loans totalling£60,000,000 (2018–£60,000,000) are Yxedusing interest rate swaps removing theGroup’s exposure
to fair value interest rate risk. Other borrowings are arranged at Zoating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash Zow
interest rate risk.

Financial instruments for Group andCompany
The derivative Ynancial assets and liabilities are designated as held for trading.

Duration of 2019 2018
Hedged contract Fair Fair
amount Average remaining value value
£’000 rate ‘years’ £’000 £’000

Derivative Financial Liability
Interest rate swap 35,000 5.06% 18.69 (22,209) (21,482)
Interest rate swap 25,000 4.63% 1.92 (1,792) (2,517)
Interest rate swap 25,000 2.13% 10.00 (2,510) (1,515)

(26,511) (25,514)
Net fair value (loss)/gain on derivative Pnancial assets (997) 886
* Fixed rate came into eXect on 1 September 2008. Rate includes 1.95%margin. The contract includes mutual breaks, the Yrst potential one was

on 23November 2014 (and every 5 years thereafter).
** This arrangement came into eXect on1December 2011whenHSBCexercised anoption toenter theGroup into this interest swap arrangement.

The rate shown includes a 1.95%margin. This contract includes amutual break on the Yfth anniversary and its duration is until 1 December 2021.
Interest rate derivatives are shown at fair value in the Income Statement, and are classiYed as Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy speciYed in IFRS 13.
The vastmajority of the derivative Ynancial liabilities are due in over one year and therefore they have been disclosed as
all due in over one year.
The above fair values are based on quotations from theGroup’s banks andDirectors’ valuation.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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29. Derivative Pnancial instruments continued
Analysis of debtmaturity
Annual cash Zows in respect of derivative Ynancial instruments are approximately £2,437,000 (2018: £2,533,000) per
annumbased on current LIBOR rates.

Interest rate risk
For the year ended 31 December 2019, if on average the 3month LIBOR over the year had been 100 basis points (1%)
higher with all other variables held constant, under the Ynancing structure in place at the year end, proYt before tax for
the year would have been approximately £2,000 higher (2018: £91,000 lower). This analysis excludes any aXect this rate
adjustment might have on expectations of future interest rates movements which is likely to aXect the estimation of
the fair value of the derivative Ynancial liabilities (as this movement would also be shown within the Income Statement
aXectingpost-tax proYt or loss), but indicates the likely cash saving/(cost) a 100basis points (1%)movementwould have
had for theGroup.

Treasurymanagement
The long-term funding of the Group is maintained by three main methods, all with their own beneYts. The Group has
equity Ynance, has surplus proYts andcashZowwhich canbeutilised, and alsohas loan facilitieswith Ynancial institutions.
The various available sources provide the Group with more Zexibility in matching the suitable type of Ynancing to the
business activity andensure long-termcapital requirements are satisYed. Pleasealso see theFinancial Riskmanagement:
Objectives, policies and processes formanaging risk, of theGroup Strategic Report.

30. Contingent liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities at the year end (2018: nil).

31. Lease arrangements and obligations under leases
IFRS16eliminates theclassiYcationof leases asoperating leasesor Ynance leases and treats all in a similarway toYnance
leases (see note 35).

TheGroup as lessee
TheGroup paid rent under non-cancellable leases in the year of £842,000 (2018 – £940,000).
The majority of these non-cancellable lease obligations are long leasehold investments in which the Group receives a
proYt rent. These investments often have rents payable, often with a contingent element (for example paying a
proportion of collected rents), and aminimum rent obligation that is due to the superior landlord.
The average lease length is 150 years. Theminimum rental payment obligations due under these operating leases and
anticipated rental income derived from these investments are shown below. The diXerence between the rents payable
in the year of £842,000 (2018: £940,000) and the minimum for the year of £651,000 (2018: £611,000) is related to the
contingent element only payable out of rents receivable.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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31. Lease arrangements and obligations under leases continued
Minimum future payments under non-cancellable leases

2019 2018
(Lessee) £’000 £’000
Payable within one year 651 611
Payable between one year and Yve years 2,603 2,562
Payable inmore than Yve years 43,648 44,283

46,902 47,456
Anticipated rental income derived under non-cancellable sub leases

2019 2018
(Lessor) £’000 £’000
Payable within one year 3,729 3,727
Payable between one year and Yve years 11,099 10,820
Payable inmore than Yve years 6,359 7,446

21,187 21,993
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Leases duewithin one year
(included within current liabilities) 651 571
Leases duewithin one to Yve years 2,604 2,284
Leases due inmore than Yve years 5,308 5,226
(included within non-current liabilities) 7,912 7,510
Total lease obligations 8,563 8,080

TheGroup as a lessor
TheGroup rents out its investment properties under leases. Revenue represents theGroups rental income for the year.
Contracted rental income derived under non-cancellable leases on investment properties

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Payable within one year 12,613 11,863
Payable between one year and Yve years 35,454 33,315
Payable inmore than Yve years 36,643 39,045

84,710 86,223

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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32. Reconciliation of liabilities fromPnancing activities
Non-cash Other

1 January Cash movements non-cash 31December
2018 Qow NewLeases movements 2018
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Derivative Ynancial instruments (26,400) – – 886 (25,514)
Leases (current) (577) 571 6 (571) (571)
Leases (non-current) (7,552) – (529) 571 (7,510)
Borrowings (current) (159) 161 – (1,073) (1,071)
Borrowings (non-current) (74,270) 14,125 – 1,281 (58,864)

(108,958) 14,857 (523) 1,094 (93,530)
Non-cash Other

1 January Cash movements non-cash 31December
2019 Qow New leases movements 2019
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Derivative Ynancial instruments (25,514) – – (997) (26,511)
Leases (current) (571) 651 (160) (571) (651)
Leases (non-current) (7,510) – (973) 571 (7,912)
Borrowings (current) (1,071) 1,071 – (1,072) (1,072)
Borrowings (non-current) (58,864) (1,000) – 909 (58,955)

(93,530) 722 (1,133) (1,160) (95,101)

33. Events after the reporting date
In January 2020, JEBealePLCwent into administration. Theywere a tenantwithin 13 freehold department storesowned
by the Group. The Group announced in January 2020 that the Directors believed that this would not have a material
eXect on revenues.
COVID-19, as a health issue and with the government imposed closures to business and restriction on people’s
movements, will have a signiYcant eXect on the 2020 results including a potential decline in revenues and/or a future
impairment of assets. The Ynancial eXects cannot be reliably quantiYed at this early stage, but the Group is in a strong
Ynancial position to weather the crisis. More details on this are contained with theGroup Strategic Report.
The impact of COVID-19 is considered to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and as such the Statement
of Financial Position, including property valuations, has been prepared on the facts and circumstances as at
31December 2019.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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34. Related party transactions
Transactions between theCompany and its subsidiaries, which are relatedpartiesof theCompany, havebeeneliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.
The compensation of the Group’s key management personnel is shown in note 8 to the Ynancial statements and
Directors’ emoluments are shown in note 8 and theDirectors’ Report.
At 31 December 2019 included within creditors was, £9,000 (2018: £24,000) payable to the beneYciaries of the estate
of late F PerloX, £24,000 due to H PerloX (2018: £4,000 due from him), both close family members of a director.
Movement in the year related to propertymanagement services. AlsoAPerloXowed theGroup£17,000 (2018: £3,000)
at the year end.
At 31December 2019 includedwithin creditorswas, £43,000 (2018: £49,000) owed toMalandPension Fund a company
sponsored pension scheme (for a director). This is a trading relationship as the balance owed was in relation to a jointly
managedpropertywere the interestswere split andhavebeen formany years. Nocontributions havebeenmadeby the
company for over a decade and there are no plans tomake any further contributions.
Anglia HomeFurnishings Ltd, a company ownedwholly by Portnard Ltd, took assignment of a lease and pays rent to the
group of £125,000 pa.
During the year dividends of £1,323,000 (2018: £1,127,000) were paid to directors of theGroup.

35. Adoption of IFRS 16
IFRS16eliminates theclassiYcationof leases asoperating leasesor Ynance leases and treats all in a similarway toYnance
leases. It replaced IAS 17 and related interpretations. In accordance with IFRS 16 as the Group has taken the practical
expedient exemption the followingonly relates to theGroup’so[cepremiseandother related leases.Nonew leaseshave
been entered into since the date of transition being 1 January 2019.
Type of lease New accounting policy Nature of change in accounting policy
O[ce premises Under IAS 17, such lease payments were

recognised on a straight line basis over the lease
term and the leases were eXectively “oX balance
sheet”. For Investment properties held under
operating leases these were treated as Ynance
leases.

IFRS 16 does not impact the treatment of low
value leases.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using themodiYed retrospective method (including appropriate practical expedients),
with eXect of initially applying this standard recognised to the date of initial application (i.e. 1 January 2019). Accordingly,
the information presented for 2018 has not been restated.

IFRS 16 allows for low values leases not to be
recognised as a right of use asset. Such
leases are recognised on a straight line basis.
We consider any lease with a value under of
nomore than£10,000 falls into this category.

Short term and
low value leases
“Appropriate
practical
expedients”

Liabilities for such leases are recognised and
measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments. For new leases
these arediscountedusing the rate implicit in
the lease when readily determinable. For
other leases these are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate relevant to the
lease. A right of use asset has been
recognisedusing the retrospectiveapproach.
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35. Adoption of IFRS 16 continued
The impact of transition to IFRS16on retained earnings at 1 January 2019 is £Nil as any adjustments to the reserves are
not consideredmaterial.
The sub-lease for the o[ce premises has not been recognised on the grounds ofmateriality.

The nature and accounting of Group’s leasing activities
Operating leases in relation to investment properties in accordancewith IAS17werepreviously accounted for as Ynance
leases. TheGroup has other lease contracts for property,motor vehicles, o[ce equipment, plant and equipmentwhich
have lease terms varying between 2 and 11 years. The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or
less and leases of o[ce equipment with low value. TheGroup has applied the recognition exemptions for these leases.
Thegrouphas taken thepractical expedient to not to apply this Standard to contracts thatwerenot previously identiYed
as containing a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Groupallocates considerationbetween lease andnon-lease components basedon theprice a lessor, or similar supplier,
would charge to purchase that component separately. The lease termbegins at the commencement date and includes
any rent-free periods provided by the lessor. Lease terms vary between contracts and depend on the individual facts
and circumstances of the contract.
Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. The Group’s incremental borrowing rate is the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent creditor under comparable terms and conditions. The weighted-
average rate applied was 7%.
Measurement of lease liabilities:

£’000
Operating lease commitments disclosed at 31December 2018 47,456
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 31December 2018 (39,376)
Lease liability recognised as at 31December 2018 8,080
Leases not previously recognised as Ynance leases 629
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 8,709

36. Approval of Pnancial statements
The Ynancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 14May 2020.
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Opinion
We have audited the Ynancial statements of Panther
Securities PLC (the ‘Parent Company’) for the year ended
31 December 2019 which comprise the Parent Company
Statement of Financial Position, the Parent Company
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Notes to the
Parent Company Accounts, including a summary of
signiYcant accounting policies. The Ynancial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law andUnited KingdomAccounting Standards,
includingFRS101“ReducedDisclosureFramework” (United
KingdomGenerally AcceptedAccounting Practice).
In our opinion, the Parent Company Ynancial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the Parent

Company’s aXairs as at 31December 2019;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with

United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards onAuditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the Parent Company Ynancial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Parent Company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Parent Company Ynancial
statements in theUK, including theFRC’sEthical Standard
as applied to SME listed entities, and we have fulYlled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.Webelieve that the audit evidencewehave
obtained is su[cient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
• the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of

accounting in thepreparationof theParentCompany
Ynancial statements is not appropriate; or

• the Directors have not disclosed in the Parent
CompanyYnancial statements any identiYedmaterial
uncertainties that may cast signiYcant doubt about
the Parent Company’s ability to continue to adopt
thegoing concern basis of accounting for a periodof
at least twelve months from the date when the
ParentCompanyYnancial statements are authorised
for issue.

Emphasis ofmatter – Impact of COVID-19
We draw attention to note 4 of the Ynancial statements,
which describes the impact of COVID-19 on the Parent
Company. Our opinion is not modiYed in respect of
thismatter.

Other information
Theother informationcomprises the information included
in theAnnual Report andFinancial Statements, other than
theGroup andParentCompany Ynancial statements and
our auditor’s reports thereon. The Directors are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
ParentCompanyYnancial statements doesnot cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Parent Company
Ynancial statements, our responsibility is to read theother
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Parent
CompanyYnancial statementsorour knowledgeobtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determinewhether there is amaterialmisstatement in the
Parent Company Ynancial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Parent Company Independent Auditor’s Report
To theMembers of Panther Securities PLC
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In ouropinion, basedon theworkundertaken in thecourse
of the audit:
• the informationgiven in theStrategic Report and the

Directors’ Report for the Ynancial year for which the
Parent Company Ynancial statements are prepared
is consistent with the Parent Company Ynancial
statements; and

• the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the
Parent Company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identiYed material
misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’
Report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by

the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

• the Parent Company Ynancial statements are not in
agreementwith the accounting records and returns;
or

• certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
speciYed by law are notmade; or

• we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statementsetoutonpage20, thedirectorsare responsible
for the preparation of the Parent Company Ynancial
statementsand forbeingsatisYed that theygivea trueand
fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine isnecessary toenable thepreparationofParent
Company Ynancial statements that are free frommaterial
misstatement, whether due to fraudor error.

In preparing the Parent Company Ynancial statements,
the Directors are responsible for assessing the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable,matters related togoing concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Parent
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
Parent Company Pnancial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Parent Company Ynancial statements as a
whole are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordancewith ISAs (UK)will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are consideredmaterial
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to inZuence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Parent Company
Ynancial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the parent company Ynancial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Othermatter
We have reported separately on the Group Ynancial
statements of Panther Securities PLC for the year ended
31 December 2019. That report includes the key audit
matters andother audit planningandscopingmatters that
relate to the Parent Company.

Parent Company Independent Auditor’s Report continued
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Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s
members, as a body, in accordancewithChapter 3of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Parent
Company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permittedby law,wedonot
accept or assume responsibility to anyoneother than the
ParentCompany and theParentCompany’smembers as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

JacquelineOakes
Senior Statutory Auditor,
for and on behalf of
Nexia Smith &Williamson
25Moorgate
London
EC2R 6AY
Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
14May 2020

Parent Company Independent Auditor’s Report continued
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Parent Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31December 2019

2019 2018
Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fixed assets
Investments 39 25,275 26,198
Current assets
Debtors 40 93,145 98,724
Current asset investments 41 168 –
Cash at bank and in hand 7,841 18,141

101,154 116,865
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year 42 (11,188) (15,940)
Net current assets 89,965 100,925
Total assets less current liabilities 115,241 127,123
Creditors: amounts falling due
aftermore than one year 43 (58,841) (58,678)
Derivative Ynancial liability 29 (26,511) (25,514)
Net assets 29,889 42,931
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 45 4,437 4,437
Share premium account 25 5,491 5,491
Treasury shares 25 (213) (213)
Capital redemption reserve 25 604 604
ProYt and loss account 19,570 32,612
Shareholders’ funds 29,889 42,931

As permitted under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no Income Statement or Statement of Comprehensive
Income is presented for the parent company.
The Parent Companymade a loss of £8,120,000 (2018: a proYt of £22,880,000).
The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 14May 2020. They were signed on
its behalf by:

A.S. PerloO
Chairman
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31December 2019

Capital
Share Share Treasury redemption Retained
capital premium shares reserves earnings Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 January 2018 4,437 5,491 (213) 604 13,962 24,281
ProYt for the year – – – – 22,880 22,880
Movement in fair value of
investments taken to equity – – – – (197) (197)
Deferred tax relating tomovement in
fair value of investments taken to equity – – – – 34 34
Dividends – – – – (4,067) (4,067)
Balance at 1 January 2019 4,437 5,491 (213) 604 32,612 42,931
Loss for the year – – – – (8,120) (8,120)
Movement in fair value of investments
taken to equity – – – – (225) (225)
Deferred tax relating tomovement in
fair value of investments taken to equity – – – – 38 38
Realised fair value of disposal of
investments previously taken to equity – – – – 48 48
Realised deferred tax relating to disposal
of investments previously taken to equity – – – – (8) (8)
Dividends – – – – (4,775) (4,775)
Balance at 31December 2019 4,437 5,491 (213) 604 19,570 29,889
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37. Accounting policies for the Parent Company
The Parent Company Ynancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
ReducedDisclosure Framework.

Basis of preparation of Pnancial statements
The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:
• the exemption from providing certain comparative information;
• the exemption from preparing a statement of cash Zows;
• the exemption from declaring compliance with IFRS;
• the exemption from disclosing aspects of capital riskmanagement;
• the exemption from providing a reconciliation on the number of shares outstanding;
• the exemption from disclosing information about IFRS in issue but not yet adopted;
• the exemption from disclosing keymanagement personnel compensation; and
• the exemption from disclosing transactions betweenwholly owned groupmembers.
In relation to the following exemptions equivalent disclosures have been given in the consolidated Ynancial statements:
• the exemption from certain Ynancial instrument disclosures; and
• the exemption from certain fair value disclosures.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of Ynancial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
aXect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the Statement of Financial Position date and the amounts
reported for revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes
could diXer from those estimates.
Judgements and key sourcesof estimationuncertainty of theGroup, applicable to the consolidatedYnancial statements
have been disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated Ynancial statements. There are no additional judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty that are applicable to the Parent Company only.

SigniPcant accounting policies
Theaccounting policies of theParentCompany are identical to those adopted in theConsolidatedFinancial Statements
of theGroup,where applicable,with theexceptionof revenue recognition and theadditionof investments in subsidiaries.

Revenue recognition
Turnover comprisesdividend income from investments recognisedwhen theCompany’s rights to receivepaymenthave
been established.

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements
For the year ended 31December 2019
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37. Accounting policies for the Parent Company continued
Investments
Under IFRS 9, the Company has made an irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity
instruments thatwouldotherwisebemeasuredat fair value throughproYtor less topresent subsequent changes through
other comprehensive income. Fair values of these investments are basedonquotedmarket priceswhere available. The
fair valueof the investments in unquotedequity securities is consideredwhere it canandcannotbemeasured reliably they
have therefore been measured at cost. Movements in fair value are taken directly to equity. When these investments
are considered impaired in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, under the expected credit loss model, the
impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement. The investments represent investments in listed and
unquoted equity securities that oXer theGroup the opportunity for return through dividend income and fair value gains.
They have no Yxedmaturity or coupon rate. Those shares that are expected to be held for the long term are shown as
non-current assets and those that are held for short term are shown as current assets.
Current asset investments are held for short term trading and are carried at fair value with movements in fair value
recognised in the Income Statement.

38. StaO costs
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

StaX costs, including Directors’ remuneration, were as follows:
Wages and salaries 785 947
Social security costs 87 107
Pension contributions 12 33

884 1,087

The averagemonthly number of employees, including Directors, during the year was as follows:
2019 2018

Number Number
Directors 5 5
Other employees 19 16

24 21

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued
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39. Fixed asset investments
Shares in Group Other

undertakings investments Total
£’000 £’000 £’000

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2019 24,348 1,850 26,198
Movement in fair value taken to equity – (225) (225)
Movement in fair value take to equity realised on disposal – 48 48
Disposals – (746) (746)
At 31December 2019 24,348 927 25,275
Investments:
Listed – 910 910
Unlisted 24,348 17 24,365

The above investments are shown atmarket valuewhere there is an activemarket for these shares. The historic cost of
listed investments is £1,284,000 (2018: £2,030,000).
For details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31December 2019, see note 17.

40. Debtors
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Due less than one year:
Trade debtors 268 287
Corporation tax 1,270 2,573
Amounts owed byGroup undertakings 87,022 90,809
Prepayments and accrued income 15 685
Duemore than one year:
Deferred tax (note 44) 4,570 4,370

93,145 98,724

41. Investments (current assets)
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Listed or quoted investments 168 –

These are investments that are held for short term trading and not long term investment.

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued
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42. Creditors
Amounts falling duewithin one year

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Trade creditors 42 1,109
Bank loans 1,000 1,000
Amounts owed toGroup undertakings 9,541 13,610
Social security and other taxes 46 70
Other creditors 141 90
Accruals and deferred income 418 61

11,188 15,940

43. Creditors
Amounts falling due aftermore than one year

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Bank loans 58,841 58,678

The bank loan is secured by Yrst Yxed charges on the properties held within the Group and Zoating charge over all the
assets of the Company. The lenders have also taken Yxed security over the shares held in theGroup undertakings.

44. Deferred taxation
The following potential deferred taxation asset is recognised:

2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Fair value of investments 63 34
Fair value of Ynancial instruments 4,507 4,336

4,570 4,370

45. Called up share capital
2019 2018
£’000 £’000

Authorised
30,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.25 each 7,500 7,500
Allotted, called up and fully paid
17,746,929 (2018: 17,746,929) ordinary shares of £0.25 each 4,437 4,437

TheCompany is limited by shares and has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to Yxed income.
During2019, noordinary shareswere issued in theperiod (2018: nil). 63,460 (2018: 63,460) ordinary sharesof £0.25each
are held in treasury representing 0.4%of the Company’s issued share capital.

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued
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46. Related party transactions
Transactions between theCompanyand its subsidiaries, which are relatedpartiesof theCompany, havebeeneliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.
The compensation of the Group’s key management personnel is shown in note 8 to the Ynancial statements and
Directors’ emoluments are shown in note 8 and theDirectors’ Report.
At 31 December 2019 included within creditors was, £9,000 (2018: £24,000) payable to the beneYciaries of the estate
of late F PerloX, £24,000 due to H PerloX (2018: £4,000 due from him), both close family members of a director.
Movement in the year related to propertymanagement services. AlsoAPerloXowed theGroup£17,000 (2018: £3,000)
at the year end.
At 31December 2019 includedwithin creditorswas, £43,000 (2018: £49,000) owed toMalandPension Fund a company
sponsored pension scheme (for a director). This is a trading relationship as the balance owed was in relation to a jointly
managedpropertywere the interestswere split andhavebeen formany years. Nocontributions havebeenmadeby the
company for over a decade and there are no plans tomake any further contributions.
During the year dividends of £1,323,000 (2018: £1,127,000) were paid to directors of theGroup.

47. Riskmanagement
For information on the Company’s riskmanagement please refer to note 29 of theGroup accounts.

48. Events after the reporting period date
In January 2020, JEBealePLCwent into administration. Theywere a tenantwithin 13 freehold department storesowned
by the Group. The Group announced in January 2020 that the Directors believed that this would not have a material
eXect on revenues.
COVID-19, as a health issue and with the government imposed closures to business and restriction on people’s
movements, will have a signiYcant eXect on the 2020 results including a potential decline in revenues and/or a future
impairmentof assets. TheYnancial eXects cannot be reliably quantiYedat this early stage, but theCompany is in a strong
Ynancial position to weather the crisis. More details on this are contained with theGroup Strategic Report.

49. Authorisation of Pnancial statements and statement of compliancewith FRS101
The Ynancial statements of Panther Securities PLC (the “Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 were
authorised for issueby theBoardofDirectors on14May2020and theStatementof Financial Positionwas signedon the
board’s behalf byASPerloX. Panther Securities PLC is incorporated anddomiciled in England andWales. TheseYnancial
statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
(FRS 101) and in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
TheCompany’s Ynancial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest (£000’s) except
when otherwise indicated.
The results of Panther Securities PLC are included within the consolidated Ynancial statements of Panther Securities
PLC. The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are set out in note 37.

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued
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Arrangements for the 2020 Annual General
Meeting (AGM) in light of COVID-19.
In viewof theCOVID-19pandemic and theGovernment’s
measures to restrict travel andpublic gatherings currently
in force (the Movement Restrictions), including the
prohibition on public gatherings ofmore than twopeople,
the Board has decided that it is not possible to hold the
Company’s AGM in its usual format.
Notice is hereby given that the 86th Annual General
Meeting of Panther Securities P.L.C. is planned to be held
on 23 June 2020 at UnicornHouse, StationClose, Potters
Bar,Herts., EN61TLat10.00ambutdue to theCOVID-19
restrictions.NOmembers in addition to S. J. Peters and
A. S. PerloO (who will make up the quorum) will be
allowed to be present. Any member who attempts to
attend will not be allowed access. The only voting being
acceptedwill beviaProxyVotingandnooneapart fromthe
Chairmanwill be allowed tobe aProxy.Please seeNotes1
to7to thisnotice for further informationaboutproxies.
Following the closure of the AGM a ZOOM meeting
will be held for shareholders who want to ask questions
about the accounts and generally it will be capped at
a maximum of 100 people. If you want to have the login
details for the ZOOM meeting you will need to email
info@pantherplc.comwith subject “Shareholdermeeting”
at least3daysbefore themeeting.Requests for admission
will be dealt with on a Yrst come, Yrst served basis .

AsOrdinary Business
1. To receive and adopt the Group Strategic Report,

Directors’ Report and Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 contained in the
document entitled “Annual Report and Financial
Statements 2019”.

2. To ratify the payment of a Ynal dividend of 6.0p per
ordinary share as the Ynal dividend.

3. To re-elect S. J. Peters who is retiring by rotation, as
a Director.

4. To appoint new auditors Crowe U.K. LLP and to
authorise the Directors to determine their
remuneration.

As Special Business
Toconsider,and, if thoughtYt,passthefollowingresolutions
of which resolutions 5 and 7 will be proposed as ordinary
resolutions and resolution6 as a special resolution.

5. That for thepurposesof section551CompaniesAct
2006 (and so that expressions used in this resolution
shall bear the same meaning as in the said
section 551):
5.1 the Directors be and are generally and

unconditionally authorised to allot equity
securities (as deYned in section 560 of the
Companies Act 2006) up to a maximum
aggregate nominal amount of £2,400,000 to
such persons and at such times and on such
terms as they think proper during the period
expiring at the earlier of 15 months from the
date of passing of this resolution and the
conclusionof theAnnualGeneralMeetingof the
Company to be held in 2021 (unless previously
revoked or varied by the Company in general
meeting) except that the Companymay before
such expirymake any oXer or agreement which
could or might require relevant securities to be
allotted after such expiry and theDirectorsmay
allot relevant securities pursuant to any such
oXer or agreement as if such authority had not
expired; and

5.2 this resolution revokes and replaces all
unexercised authorities previously granted to
the directors pursuant to section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 but without prejudice to
any allotmentof sharesor grantof rights already
made, oXered or agreed to made pursuant to
such authorities.

6. That, subject to the passing of resolution 5, set out
in the Notice convening this Meeting, the Directors
are empowered in accordance with section 571 of
theCompaniesAct 2006 to allot equity securities (as
deYned in section 560 of the Companies Act 2006)
for cash, pursuant to the authority conferred on
them to allot equity securities (as deYned in section
560of theAct) by that resolution and/or to sell equity
securities held as treasury shares for cash pursuant
to section 727 of the Companies Act 2006, in each
case as if section 561 (1) of theCompaniesAct 2006
did not apply to any such allotment or sale, provided
that the power conferred by this resolution shall be
limited to:
6.1 the allotment of equity securities in connection

with an issue or oXering in favour of or sale to
holders of equity securities and any other
persons entitled to participate in such issue or

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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oXeringwhere theequity securities respectively
attributable to the interests of such holders and
persons are proportionate (as nearly asmay be)
to the respective number of equity securities
held by or deemed to be held by them on the
record date of such allotment, subject only to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the
Directorsmay consider necessary or expedient
to deal with fractional entitlements or legal or
practical problems under the laws or
requirementsof any recognised regulatory body
or stock exchange in any territory;

6.2 the allotment or sale (otherwise than pursuant
to paragraph 6.1 above) of equity securities up
to an aggregate nominal value not exceeding
£221,000; and

6.3 the power granted by this resolution, unless
renewed, shall expire at theearlier of 15months
from the date of passing of this resolution and
theconclusionof theAnnualGeneralMeetingof
theCompany tobeheld in 2021but shall extend
to themaking, before such expiry, of an oXer or
agreement which would ormight require equity
securities tobeallottedafter suchexpiry and the
Directors may allot equity securities in
pursuance of such oXer or agreement as if the
authority conferred hereby had not expired.

7. That the Company is generally and unconditionally
authorised for the purpose of section 701
Companies Act 2006 tomakemarket purchases (as
deYned in section 693 (4) of the said Act) of ordinary
shares of 25p each in the capital of the Company
(“ordinary shares”) provided that the Company be
and is hereby authorised to purchase its own shares
by way of market purchase upon and subject to the
following conditions:-
7.1 The maximum number of shares which may be

purchased is 2,500,000 ordinary shares;

7.2 The maximum price (exclusive of expense) at
which any share may be purchased is the price
equal to 5 per cent, above the average of the
middle market quotations of an ordinary share
as derived from the London Stock Exchange
Daily O[cial List for the Yve business days
preceding the date of such purchase, and the
minimum price at which any share may be
purchased shall be the par value of such share;
and

7.3 The authority to purchase conferred by this
Resolution shall expire at the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company
provided that any contract for the purchase of
any shares as aforesaid which was concluded
before the expiry of the said authority may be
executedwholly or partly after the said authority
expires.

The directors believe that the proposals in resolutions
1-7 are in the best interests of shareholders as awhole
and they unanimously recommend that you vote in
favour of the resolutions.
By order of the Board

S. J. Peters
Company Secretary
RegisteredORce
Unicorn House
Station Close, Potters Bar
Hertfordshire EN6 1TL
14May 2020
See over for notes.

Notice of Annual General Meeting continued
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Notes
1. Any member of the Company entitled to attend and

vote at thismeeting is alsoentitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote in his stead. Such a proxy need not also
be amember of the Company.

2. A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in
relation to the Annual General Meeting provided that
each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached
to a diXerent share or shares held by that shareholder.

3. A proxy form is enclosed. To appoint a proxy,
shareholdersmust complete:
• a form of proxy and return it together with the

power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which it is signed or a notarially certiYed copy of
such authority, to Link Asset Services, PXS, 34
BeckenhamRoad, Beckenham, BR3 4TU ; or

• aCRESTProxy Instruction (as set out in paragraph
5 below);

in each case so that it is receivednot later than48hours
before the meeting. To appoint more than one proxy,
you will need to complete a separate proxy form in
relation to each appointment.
Please read the notes on the proxy form. The return of
a completed proxy form, will not prevent a shareholder
attending the Annual General Meeting and voting in
person if he/she wishes to do so.

4. CRESTmemberswhowish to appoint aproxyor proxies
through the CREST electronic proxy appointment
service may do so for the Annual General Meeting and
any adjournment(s) of the meeting by using the
procedures described in the CREST Manual
(available via www.euroclear.com/CREST). CREST
personal members or other CREST sponsored
members, and those CREST members who have
appointed a service provider(s), should refer to their
CRESTsponsoror voting serviceprovider(s), whowill be
able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

5. In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made
using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate
CRESTmessage (a “CRESTProxy Instruction”)must be
properly authenticated in accordancewithEuroclearUK
& Ireland Limited’s speciYcations, andmust contain the
information required for such instruction, as described
in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of
whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or is
an amendment to the instruction given to a previously
appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be
transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s

agent RA10, by the latest time for receipt of proxy
appointments set out in paragraph 3 above. For this
purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time
(as determined by the timestamp applied to the
message by the CREST Applications Host) from which
theCompany’s agent is able to retrieve themessageby
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST.
After this time, any change of instructions to proxies
appointed throughCRESTshould be communicated to
the appointee through othermeans.

6. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST
sponsors or voting service providers, should note that
Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does notmake available
special procedures in CREST for any particular
messages. Normal system timings and limitations will,
therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST
member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member
is aCRESTpersonalmember, or sponsoredmember, or
has appointed any voting serviceprovider(s), to procure
that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s)
take(s)) such action as shall be necessary toensure that
a message is transmitted by means of the CREST
systembyanyparticular time. In this connection,CREST
members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors
or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to
those sections of the CREST Manual concerning
practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

7. In the case of joint holders, wheremore than one of the
joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the
appointment submitted by the most senior holder will
be accepted. Seniority is determined by the order in
which the names of the joint holders appear in the
Company’s register of members in respect of the joint
holding (the Yrst-named being themost senior).

8. Any person towhom this Notice is sent who is a person
nominated under section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 toenjoy information rights (a “NominatedPerson”)
may, under an agreement between him/her and the
shareholder by whom he/she was nominated, have a
right to be appointed (or to have someone else
appointed) as a proxy for theAnnualGeneralMeeting. If
a Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment
right or does not wish to exercise it, he/shemay, under
any such agreement, have a right to give instructions to
the shareholder as to the exercise of voting rights. The
statementof the rightsof shareholders in relation to the
appointment of proxies in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 above
does not apply to Nominated Persons. The rights
described in these paragraphs can only be exercised by
shareholders of the Company

Notice of Annual General Meeting continued
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9. A statement of all transactions of eachDirector and his
family interests in the share capital of the Company will
be available for inspection at theCompany’s registered
o[ce during normal business hours from the date of
this notice up to the close of the Annual General
Meeting and will be available for inspection at the place
of the Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes
prior to and during themeeting.

10. Pursuant to regulation 41 of the UncertiYcated
SecuritiesRegulations2001, theCompanygives notice
that only those shareholders included in the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on
22 June 2020 or, if the meeting is adjourned, in the
register of members at close of business. on the day
which is two days before the day of any adjourned
meeting, will be entitled to attend and to vote at the
Annual General Meeting in respect of the number of
shares registered in their names at that time. Changes
to entries on the share register at close of business on
22 June 2020, or, if the meeting is adjourned, in the
register of members at close of business. on the day
which is two days before the day of any adjourned
meeting,will be disregarded in determining the rights of
any person to attend or vote at the Annual General
Meeting.

11. As at 9.00 a.m. on 14 May 2020, the Company’s issued
share capital comprised 17,683,469 ordinary shares of
25 pence each. Each ordinary share carries the right to
one vote at a general meeting of the Company and,
therefore, the total number of voting rights in the
Company as at 9.00 a.m. on14May2020 is 17,683,469.

12. Under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006,
members meeting the threshold requirements set out
in that section have the right to require theCompany to
publishonawebsite a statement settingout anymatter
relating to: (i) the audit of the Company’s accounts
(including the auditor’s report and the conduct of the
audit) that are to be laid before the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) any circumstance connected with an
auditor of theCompany ceasing to hold o[ce since the
previousmeeting atwhich annual accounts and reports
were laid in accordance with section 437 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Company may not require
the shareholders requesting any such website
publication to pay its expenses in complying with
sections527or 528of theCompaniesAct 2006.Where
the Company is required to place a statement on a
website under section 527of theCompaniesAct 2006,
itmust forward the statement to theCompany’s auditor
not later than the time when it makes the statement

available on the website. The business which may be
dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any
statement that the Company has been required under
section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a
website.

13. If youhavesoldorotherwise transferredall yourordinary
shares in the Company, please forward this annual
report and accounts to the purchaser or transferee or
to the stockbroker, bankorother person throughwhom
the sale or transferwaseXected for transmission to the
purchaser or transferee.

14. NoDirector is employed under a contract of service.
15. Youmaynot use anyelectronic address provided in this

Notice, or any related documents including the proxy
form, to communicate with the Company for any
purposes other than those expressly stated.

16. A copyof thisNotice, andother information requiredby
section311Aof theCompaniesAct 2006, canbe found
at www.pantherplc.com
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Explanatory Notes to the Notice of Annual
General Meeting
The following notes provide an explanation as to why
certain resolutions set out in the notice of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company are to be put to
shareholders.
Please ignore any reference to voting in person at the
AGMonly proxy votingwill be accepted.
All resolutions save for Resolution 6 are ordinary
resolutions and will be passed if more than 50% of the
votes cast for or against are in favour. Resolution 6 is a
special resolution and requires 75%of the votes cast.

Resolution 1 – Laying of accounts and adoption
of reports
Thedirectors are required by theCompaniesAct 2006 to
present to the shareholders of the Company at a general
meeting the reports of thedirectors andauditors, and the
audited accounts of the Company, for the year ended 31
December 2019. The report of the directors and the
audited accounts have been approved by the directors,
and the report of the auditors has been approved by the
auditors. A copy of each of these documents may be
found in the document entitled “Annual Report and
Financial Statements 2019”.

Resolutions 3 – Re-election of directors
In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company Simon Peters will stand for re-election as a
director of theCompany. Biographical information for the
directors and details of why the Board believes that they
should be re-elected is shown in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Resolution4–Auditors’ appointment and remuneration
The Companies Act 2006 requires that auditors be
appointed at eachgeneralmeeting atwhich accounts are
laid, to hold o[ce until the next such meeting. The
resolution seeks shareholder approval for the
appointmentofCroweLLPand thegiving to theDirectors
the authority to determine the remuneration of the
auditors for the auditwork tobecarriedout by them in the
next Ynancial year. The amount of the remuneration paid
to the auditors for the next Ynancial year will be disclosed
in the next audited accounts of the Company.

Resolution5–Authority to thedirectors toallot shares
TheCompaniesAct 2006provides that thedirectorsmay
only allot shares if authorised by shareholders to do so.
Resolution 6will, if passed, authorise the directors to allot
shares and to grant rights to subscribe for, or convert
securities into, shares up to amaximum nominal amount
of £2,400,000, which represents an amount which is
approximately equal to 55% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at 14 May 2020 the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of the notice.

Resolution6 –Dis-applicationof statutorypre-emption
rights
The Companies Act 2006 requires that, if the Company
issues new shares for cash or sells any treasury shares, it
must Yrst oXer them to existing shareholders in
proportion to their current holdings. It is proposed that the
directorsbeauthorised to issueshares for cashand/or sell
shares from treasury up to an aggregate nominal amount
of £241,000 (representing approximately 5% of the
Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 14 May
2020, the latest practicable date prior to the publication
of the notice) without oXering them to shareholders Yrst
in order to raise a limited amount of capital easily and
quickly if needed. The resolution also modiYes statutory
pre-emption rights to deal with legal, regulatory or
practical problems thatmay ariseona rights or other pre-
emptive oXer or issue. If resolution 6 is passed, this
authority will expire at the same time as the authority to
allot shares given pursuant to resolution 5.

Resolution7–Purchaseofownsharesby theCompany
If passed, this resolutionwill grant theCompany authority
for a period of up to the end of the next annual general
meeting to buy its own shares in the market. The
resolution limits the number of shares that may be
purchased to 5% of the Company’s issued share capital
as at 14May 2020, the latest practicable date prior to the
publicationof thenotice. Thepriceper ordinary share that
the Company may pay is set at a minimum amount
(excludingexpenses) of 25penceperordinary share anda
maximum amount (excluding expenses) of 5% over the
averageof theprevious Yvebusiness days’middlemarket
prices. The directors will only make purchases under this
authority if they believe that to do so would result in
increasedearningsper share andwould be in the interests
of the shareholders generally.

Notice of Annual General Meeting continued
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ProPt/ Net
Rental (loss) Net assets
Income before tax assets Dividend per

Year £’000s £’000s £’000s per share share Major events
1971 2 9 189 0.04p 2p
1972 2 21 525 0.04p 5p PerloXs’ andMBloch took control
1973 2 29 532 0.04p 5p
1974 3 30 533 0.04p 5p
1975 4 (19) 470 0.04p 4p
1976 6 (151) 306 – 3p AcquiredWillsesdenOptical Works Ltd
1977 11 (63) 234 – 2p 1st business centre created atMount Pleasant
1978 31 (29) 281 – 3p
1979 75 21 229 – 2p
1980 159 52 328 – 3p Sold all optical interests
1981 251 91 909 – 8p
1982 309 99 1,423 0.19p 13p
1983 354 137 1,753 0.22p 16p
1984 502 49 2,832 0.22p 26p
1985 559 107 3,135 0.22p 29p
1986 641 164 4,090 0.33p 38p
1987 786 240 6,750 1.1p 63p Acquired SurreyMotors ltd
1988 1,292 905 11,725 2.2p 109p
1989 1,329 580 12,211 2.2p 113p
1990 1,263 2,261 10,601 3.3p 98p Bid for Multitrust PLC
1991 1,714 556 14,277 2.5p 99p Acquired Saxonbest Ltd
1992 2,722 (114) 11,942 1.1p 83p Acquired Etonbrook Properties PLC
1993 2,942 707 13,877 2.8p 96p
1994 3,229 1,729 18,569 2.7p 99p Re-obtained full listing andacquiredMultitrust Property Investments ltd
1995 3,637 1,114 18,836 3.0p 101p
1996 4,025 2,146 21,746 5.25p 121p Bid for Elys PLC
1997 4,647 2,173 24,010 4.0p 133p
1998 4,735 3,236 28,500 6.0p 157p
1999 4,961 2,056 32,875 6.0p 182p Acquired Northstar Group
2000 5,518 2,396 32,285 6.5p 190p Malcolm Bloch retired
2001 6,020 3,531 37,186 9.0p 219p
2002 7,951 2,956 38,240 7.0p 226p Acquired Eurocity Properties PLC
2003 9,125 3,413 50,104 12.5p 295p
2004 9,194 7,632 49,871 8.0p 293p S Peters joins. Sold Panther House.
2005 8,099 26,549 67,632 20.0p 398p P Rowson retires/J PerloX and S Peters join board
2006 7,510 9,269 73,269 12.0p 431p
2007 7,526 9,089 78,608 12.0p 465p
2008 7,064 (14,331) 65,846 12.0p 390p Global Ynancial banking crisis
2009 7,380 2,953 68,010 12.0p 403p
2010 7,717 6,401 71,222 15.0p 422p
2011 8,961 (2,312) 66,955 12.0p 397p
2012 10,781 (4,633) 61,992 12.0p 367p
2013 12,502 8,155 67,876 12.0p 395p Went from full listing to AIM in Dec 13
2014 12,512 4,377 71,472 12.0p 409p
2015 12,840 8,470 76,017 22.0p 428p SoldMRGSystems Ltd
2016 12,965 (2,015) 72,279 12.0p 407p BREXIT fears
2017 12,946 24,791 91,212 22.0p 516p
2018 13,607 8,700 94,029 27.0p 532p Record disposals – £41m for £11mproYt.
2019 14,226 (4,963) 84,946 12.0p 480p
Note: bold dividend indicates includes a special dividend
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For your notes



Barry Parade ProposedDevelopment
(two views fromPeckhamRye Park)

Bishop Auckland Gateshead –Mixed Use Investment

Caerphilly (Nr CardiO) ORceComplex

Broadstairs (Proposed Elevations)



Panther Securities P.L.C.
Unicorn House
Station Close
Potters Bar
Hertfordshire EN6 1TL
www.pantherplc.com


